
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

MONDAY 20 JUNE 2022 
6.00 PM 
 
Bourges/Viersen Room - Town Hall 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA  

 Page No 

 
1. Apologies for Absence 

 
 

2. Declarations of Interest 
 

 

 At this point Members must declare whether they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, or other interest, in any of the items on the agenda, 
unless it is already entered in the register of members’ interests or is a 
“pending notification “ that has been disclosed to the Head of Legal 
Services.  

 
 

 

3. Minutes of the Meeting Held on 21 March 2022 
 

3 - 8 

4. Update Ernst & Young - Audit Results Report 
 

9 - 10 

5. Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2022 
 

11 - 44 

6. Budget Monitoring Report Final Outturn 2021/22 
 

45 - 86 

INFORMATION AND OTHER ITEMS 

 
7. Use of Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) 

 
 

 To note there have been no updates since the last meeting. 
 

 

8. Approved Write-Offs Exceeding £10,000 
 

 

 To note there have been no write-offs exceeding £10,000 since the last 
meeting. 
 

 

9. Work Programme 
 

87 - 112 

 
 

THE CHAIRMAN WILL ASSUME THAT MEMBERS HAVE READ THEIR PAPERS PRIOR 
TO THE MEETING TO AVOID UNNECESSARY INTRODUCTIONS TO REPORTS. IF ANY 
QUESTIONS ARE APPARENT FROM THE REPORTS THEY SHOULD BE PASSED TO 

THE REPORT AUTHOR PRIOR TO THE MEETING 

Public Document Pack

1



 

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Daniel Kalley on 01733 296334 as soon as possible. 
 
Did you know? All Peterborough City Council's meeting agendas are available 
online or via the modern.gov app. Help us achieve our environmental protection 
aspirations and view this agenda online instead of printing it.  

 
 

 
Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours 
 

In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.   The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 

responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair. In the event of a continuous alarm sounding remain 
seated and await instruction from the duty Beadle. 

 
Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, take photographs and use 
social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that is open to the public. Audio-recordings of 

meetings may be published on the Council’s website. A protocol on this facility is available at:  
 
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recor
ding&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385   
 

Committee Members: 
 

Councillors: I Ali (Vice Chairman), Haseeb, J Allen, N Sandford, Nawaz, Rangzeb and Perkins 
 

Co-opted members: Chris Brooks (Chair), Mike Langhorn, Stuart Green 
 

Substitutes: Councillors: Burbage, Jones and Hogg 
 
Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Daniel Kalley on telephone 01733 
296334 or by email – daniel.kalley@peterborough.gov.uk 

 
 

2

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385


  
  

 

 
 

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING 
HELD AT 5:00PM, ON 

MONDAY, 21 MARCH 2022 
ENGINE SHED, SAND MARTIN HOUSE, PETERBOROUGH 

 
 

Present:    Councillors: Sainsbury (Vice-Chair), S Farooq, Haseeb and Shaheed 
 

 Co-opted members: Chris Brooks (Chair), Stuart Green, Mike Langhorn 
   
 Officers in  
 Attendance:   Cecilie Booth, Acting Corporate Director of Resources 

           Karen Dunleavy, Democratic Services Officer 
 Fiona McMillan, Director of Law & Governance and Monitoring Officer 
 Steve Crabtree, Chief Internal Auditor 
          

   
       

Also in Attendance:  Councillor Andy Coles, Cabinet Member for Finance 
                       
 Meeting started at 5.18pm 

  
45. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Jackie Allen and 
Councillor Joseph.  

 
46.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
  There were no declarations of interest were received.  
 
47.  MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 21 FEBRUARY 

2022 
 
  

The minutes of the meeting held on 21 February 2022 were agreed as a true 
and accurate record. 

 
 
48.  INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2022/23 

 
The Audit Committee received a report in relation to the internal audit coverage 
for 2022/23.  
 
The Chief Internal Auditor introduced the report and stated that this provided 
members with the proposed internal audit plan for 2022/23. This proposal was 

3



  
  

 

set out to provide a level of assurance to the Audit Committee and the Council 
that there were sufficient and effective controls and governance arrangements 
in place. The work set out before members targeted those higher risk areas 
which could potentially have an impact on the Council, whether financial or 
reputational. Members were directed to the various appendices attached with 
the report. 
 
With regards to Appendix A and the internal audit charter, this set out how the 
work was to be completed and how the team collaborated with other 
organisations and the standards that were expected when carrying out this 
work. Members were informed that our compliance with the standards were 
externally reviewed in 2018 and the Council fully met them. 
 
In terms of Appendix B this was the code of ethics which audit officers of the 
Council followed. Appendix C set out how the Audit Plan was developed as well 
as the resources available and how they were planned to be used to complete 
the audit in the forthcoming year. 
 
Members were informed that Appendix D set out the key areas that were 
proposed to be audited in the next year. The plan was refreshed throughout the 
year depending on if there were any developing themes that arose. In addition 
Appendix E set out the coverage by the team over the previous three years as 
requested by members of the committee at the previous meeting. 

 
The Audit Committee debated the report and in summary, key points raised and 
responses to questions included: 
 

 It was felt that one of the key areas the Audit Committee needed to 
focus on going forward was around the budget setting process and the 
links to scrutiny.  

 With regards to procurement spend controls there was work being 
undertaken through the Improvement Plan. This was looking at high 
level contracts and the audit team were looking at ways to supplement 
that work. The focus of this was looking at whether the spend on certain 
contracts was appropriate and whether these were being delivered on. 

 In terms of Adult Social Care and Children’s Services, as this was 
joined with Cambridgeshire County Council the two audit teams tried to 
complement each other when it came to carrying out audits. 

 It was suggested that the committee could do a deep dive or desktop 
review around procurement and contract management within the next 
12 months. 

 The Interim Corporate Director Resources welcomed internal audit’s 
input into procurement contracts and would like the team’s feedback in 
terms of areas where the Council could make savings. 

 There was some concern over the independence of risk management, 
which was being led by internal audit, especially as this service area 
would then be reviewing how risk management was being carried out. 
Members were informed that if there was an incidence when that area 
was being audited the Chief Internal Auditor would step back and let 
other members of the audit team carry out the audit to ensure 
independence and impartiality. This was standard practice across other 
local authorities. In addition the external auditors also had the 

4



  
  

 

opportunity to review arrangements from an external viewpoint and 
could make suggestions. 

 There were also examples at other local authorities where the risk 
management and internal audit function were totally separate and this 
worked well. It was important that this was reviewed going forward. 

 It was suggested that an independent external body could look at the 
separation of risk management and internal audit and this could then 
be presented to committee at a later date. 

 Members of the committee requested that senior management looked 
at having enough resources in place to ensure that risks and internal 
audit could be carried out as fully as possible. Members were informed 
that the member of staff currently on secondment was due to return at 
the beginning of April, if this was the case the areas shaded on the plan 
would move above the line and would most likely be carried out. There 
were some ongoing conversations around recruiting apprentices to 
build additional resources for carrying out further audits. 

 
The Audit Committee considered and RESOLVED (unanimously) to. 

 
1. Consider and agree to the Internal Audit Charter for 2022 / 2023 (Appendix 
A);  
2. Consider and agree to the Internal Audit Code of Ethics 2022 / 2023 
(Appendix B); and  
3. Consider and approve the Internal Audit Strategy and Plans for 2022 / 2023 
(Appendix C, D).  
4. Note the information requested about Internal Audit work over the previous 3 
years (Appendix E) 
 

49.  STRATEGIC RISK MANAGEMENT 

 
The Audit Committee received a report in relation to strategic risk management.  
 
The Chief Internal Auditor introduced the report and commented that the paper 
set out how the Council operated in terms of identifying its risks. All officers 
across the organisation had responsibility for managing risks at the Council. 
The report set out 11 high level scores for risks which had been identified as 
scoring 15 of more on the matrix. Members were informed that there was an 
error on the report with regards to the second risk identified, this should read 
financial sustainability and not the Empower loan re-financing. This was a 
download error from the system when pulling the risks through. 
 
The Audit Committee debated the report and in summary, key points raised and 
responses to questions included: 
 

 In terms of any risks identified on the risk register these sat with 
Peterborough City Council, this included any risks around adult and 
children social care. 

 It was agreed that a response on any audit risks identified within adult 
social care was to be provided to members. 

 A comparison with other Councils could also be provided to committee 
on how they respond to risks that had been identified.  

 

5



  
  

 

The Audit Committee considered and RESOLVED (unanimously) to note the 

report.  
 

50.  ANNUAL AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT 

 
The Audit Committee received a report in relation to the Chair’s annual audit 
committee report. 
 
The Director of Law and Governance introduced the report and stated that the 
report was presented to committee on an annual basis before being presented 
to Full Council. The report summarised the items that Committee had reviewed 
over the previous 12 months. The Chair of the committee would then present 
the report to Full Council to allow all members the opportunity to scrutinise and 
ask questions over the work carried out by the committee.  
 
Members were informed that training was to play an important role going forward 
and officers were in discussion with external providers with regards to certain 
areas that the committee needed further training on. This would also be provided 
to scrutiny committee members. This would likely be a two-year training 
programme. Further details around this would be included in the annual report 
before being presented to Full Council in July. 
 
It was suggested that the terms of reference in the report be removed and made 
an appendix to the report. In addition an appendix which showed the 
membership of the committee was to be included. Further work was also to be 
carried out to make the document look more aesthetically pleasing. The external 
review by Andrew Flockhart also needed to be included in the report going 
forward. 
 
The Audit Committee debated the report and in summary, key points raised and 
responses to questions included: 
 

 It was important that the report going forward set out what the 
committee thought and areas challenged rather than a list of areas that 
the committee looked at. 

 It was important that the training needs of members was included in the 
report so that CIPFA and the Independent Improvement Panel could 
see the Council making progress on this. 

 The report needed to include areas where the committee had raised 
concerns, for example if there was a perceived shortage in terms of 
staffing for carrying out the necessary internal audits. 

 It was important that the committee reviewed its terms of reference to 
make sure they were relevant and adequate going forward.  

 Any suggestions to the report could be sent through to officers to be 
included in the final report. 

 It was important that Full Council engaged with the annual report and 
any further suggestions would be welcomed. 

 
The Audit Committee considered and RESOLVED (unanimously) to note the 
report with the additional changes as noted in the discussion. 
 
 

6



  
  

 

51.  USE OF REGULATORY INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT (RIPA) 

 
Members noted that there were no updates for this meeting. 
 

52.  UNCOLLECTABLE DEBTS EXCEEDING £10,000 
 

The Audit Committee received a report in relation to uncollectable debts 
exceeding £10,000. 
 
The Interim Corporate Director Resources introduced the report and explained 
that no debts were written off lightly. These were only written off when there 
was no way to recover the debt, this was usually when a business went into 
liquidation. 
 

The Audit Committee debated the report and in summary, key points raised and 
responses to questions included: 
 

 The peak in terms of the sundry debt was in relation to moving the 
market. It was not possible to publish details regarding individuals due 
to GDPR. 

 The process for writing off debt was standard and there was nothing 
more officers could do. 

 
The Audit Committee considered the report and RESOLVED (unanimously) to 

note the uncollectable debts over £10,000 
 

53.  WORK PROGRAMME 
 

The Audit Committee received a report in relation to the work programme for   
2022/2023. 
 
Members were informed that the statement of accounts report was going to be 
presented to the committee at the next meeting. This report was not yet ready 
for publication as there were some issues that needed to be addressed between 
officers and the external auditors. 

 
The Audit Committee debated the report and in summary, key points raised and 
responses to questions included: 
 

 A further meeting was required for June for the Committee to sign off 
the Statement of Accounts. 

 The work around the Council Improvement Plan needed to be added to 
the work programme, this would then enable the committee to review 
this at the same time as scrutiny. 

 A report on the Council’s reserve policy would allow the committee to 
review this and offer any suggestions. Members were informed that the 
Council had a reserve’s policy. The Council had a low level of reserves 
compared to other unitary authorities. 

 With regards to the deep dive topics some suggestions were made 
around the budget setting and scrutiny process. In addition further 
reports on the risk management strategy would be beneficial to the 
committee. 

7



  
  

 

 Furthermore an internal audit review report was to be added to the work 
programme. 

 
The Audit Committee considered and RESOLVED (unanimously) to note the 

report, with the inclusion of the additional items going forward. 
 

 
Chair 

5:18pm – 6:16pm                           
                         

 
 
 
. 
 
 
 
 

8



 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 4 

20 JUNE 2022 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Report of: Cecilie Booth – Interim Corporate Director of Resources  

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Cllr Coles – Cabinet Member for Finance 

Contact Officer(s): Cecilie Booth – Interim Corporate Director of Resources Tel. 384564 

 

UPDATE ERNST & YOUNG – AUDIT RESULTS REPORT 
 

 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM: Cecilie Booth – Interim Corporate Director of 
Resources 

Deadline date: 20 June 2022 

 
     It is recommended that Audit Committee: 
 

1. Receive and note the verbal update of the “Audit Results Report - (ISA260)” for the year ended 
31 March 2021 from Ernst & Young (EY) on behalf of the Council. 

 

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 

 
1.1 To receive an update from Ernst Young regarding the “Audit Results Report - (ISA260)” for the 

year ended 31 March 2021. 
 

2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT  

 
2.1 This is a report covering the update from Ernst Young regarding the “Audit Results Report - 

(ISA260)” for 2020/21. A verbal update will be provided at the meeting. 
 

2.2 This report is for the Audit Committee to consider under its Terms of Reference No. 
  
2.2.1.5 To consider the external auditors annual letter, relevant reports, and the report to those 
charged with governance and  
 
2.2.1.7 To comment on the scope and depth of external audit work and to ensure it gives value 
for money 
 

3. TIMESCALES 

  
Is this a Major Policy 
Item/Statutory Plan? 

NO If yes, date for 
Cabinet meeting  

n/a 

 
4. APPENDICES 

 
4.1 None 

 
 
  

9



This page is intentionally left blank

10



 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 5 

20 JUNE 2022 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Report of: Cecilie Booth – Interim Corporate Director of Resources  

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Cllr Coles – Cabinet Member for Finance 

Contact Officer(s): Cecilie Booth – Interim Corporate Director of Resources Tel. 384564 

 

ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 

 
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM: Cecilie Booth – Interim Corporate Director of 

Resources 

Deadline date: 20 June 2022 

 
     It is recommended that Audit Committee: 
 

1. Receive and note the “Auditors Certificate of the Opinion Previously Issued in Advance of the 
Audit and Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2020” from Ernst & Young (EY) on 
behalf of the Council. 

 

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 

 
1.1 To receive and note the “Auditors Certificate of the Opinion Previously Issued in Advance of the 

Audit and Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2020” from Ernst & Young (EY) on 
behalf of the Council. 
 

2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 

 
2.1 This is the report covering the requirement of the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit 

Practice for EY to issue an Annual Audit Letter to Those Charged with Governance (the Audit 
Committee) following the conclusion of the audit and issue of the audit certificate.  This means 
that the 2019/20 audit is now complete and closed.  
 

2.2 This report is for the Audit Committee to consider under its Terms of Reference No.  
 
2.2.1.5 To consider the external auditors annual letter, relevant reports, and the report to those 
charged with governance and  
 
2.2.1.7 To comment on the scope and depth of external audit work and to ensure it gives value 
for money 
 

3. TIMESCALES 

 
  

Is this a Major Policy 
Item/Statutory Plan? 

NO If yes, date for 
Cabinet meeting  

n/a 

 
 

11



 

4. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

4.1 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
4.5 

In the report dated 21 June 2021, EY explained that they could not formally conclude the audit 
on that date until the work necessary to issue their assurance statement in respect of the 
authority’s Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) consolidation pack had been completed. This 
work is no longer required. 
 
This certificate has been issued now as EY required confirmation from the HM Treasury (HMT), 
that as the 2019/20 data submission cycle had closed before the Council could submit its return 
and it was no longer possible for entities to submit their cycle 2 data, the audit responsibility to 
issue an assurance statement in respect of the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts 
consolidation pack was removed.  
  
EY have confirmed that no matters have come to their attention since that date that would have 
a material impact on the financial statements on which they gave an unqualified opinion and no 
matters have come to their attention that would have resulted in a different opinion on the financial 
statements or additional exception reporting on significant weaknesses in the Authority’s value 
for money arrangements.  
 
The Council can confirm that there have been no changes to the 2019/20 Accounts or the Final 
Audit Report 2019/20 since the reports went to Audit Committee in June 2021 
 
EY have certified that they have completed the audit of the accounts of Peterborough City Council 
in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code 
of Audit Practice issued by the National Audit Office. 
 

5. APPENDICES 
 

5.1 Appendix A - Auditors Certificate of the Opinion Previously Issued in Advance of the Audit  
 
Appendix B -  Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2020 
 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

12



 

 

AUDITORS CERTIFICATE WHERE THE OPINION PREVIOUSLY ISSUED IN 
ADVANCE OF CLOSURE OF THE AUDIT 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF PETERBOROUGH 
CITY COUNCIL 

Issue of audit opinion on the financial statements 

In our audit report for the year ended 31 March 2020 issued on 21 June 2021 we 
reported that, in our opinion, the financial statements: 
 

• gave a true and fair view of the financial position of Peterborough City 
Council as at 31 March 2020 and of its expenditure and income for the year 
then ended;  

• gave a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 March 
2020 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended; and 

• had been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20. 

 

Certificate 

In our report dated 21 June 2021, we explained that we could not formally conclude 
the audit on that date until we had completed the work necessary to issue our 
assurance statement in respect of the authority’s Whole of Government Accounts 
consolidation pack. This work is no longer required.  

No matters have come to our attention since that date that would have a material 
impact on the financial statements on which we gave an unqualified opinion and no 
matters have come to our attention that would have resulted in a different opinion on 
the financial statements or additional exception reporting on significant weaknesses 
in the Authority’s value for money arrangements. 

We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of Peterborough City 
Council in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability 
Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice issued by the National Audit Office. 
 
 
 

 
  
 
Neil Harris (Key Audit Partner)  
Ernst & Young LLP (Local Auditor)  
Luton  
16 May 2022 
 
 
 
 

13



This page is intentionally left blank

14



Peterborough City 
Council
Annual Audit Letter for the year 
ended 31 March 2020

May 2022

15



Ref: EY-000092651-
01

Page

Section 1 Executive Summary 3

Section 2 Purpose and Responsibilities 7

Section 3 Financial Statement Audit 10

Section 4 Value for Money 18

Section 5 Other Reporting Issues 22

Section 6 Focused on your future 25

Appendices

Appendix A Audit Fees 27

Contents

Peterborough City Council 2

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) have issued a ‘Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited 
bodies’. It is available from the Chief Executive of each audited body and via the PSAA website (www.psaa.co.uk). 

This Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and 
audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and 
what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.

The ‘Terms of Appointment (updated April 2018)’ issued by PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors 
must comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and 
statute, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.

This Annual Audit Letter is prepared in the context of the Statement of responsibilities / Terms and Conditions of 
Engagement. It is addressed to the Members of the audited body, and is prepared for their sole use. We, as 
appointed auditor, take no responsibility to any third party.

Our Complaints Procedure – If at any time you would like to discuss with us how our service to you could be 
improved, or if you are dissatisfied with the service you are receiving, you may take the issue up with your usual 
partner or director contact. If you prefer an alternative route, please contact Hywel Ball, our Managing Partner, 1 
More London Place, London SE1 2AF. We undertake to look into any complaint carefully and promptly and to do all 
we can to explain the position to you. Should you remain dissatisfied with any aspect of our service, you may of 
course take matters up with our professional institute. We can provide further information on how you may contact 
our professional institute.

16

http://www.psaa.co.uk/


Ref: EY-000092651-
01

Section 1

Executive Summary

Peterborough City Council 3

17



Ref: EY-000092651-
01

We are required to issue an annual audit letter to Peterborough City Council (the Council) following completion of our audit procedures for the year ended 31 March 2020. 

Covid-19 had an impact on a number of aspects of our 2019/20 audit. We set out these key impacts below. 

Peterborough City Council 4

Executive Summary

Area of impact Commentary

Impact on the delivery of the audit

► Changes to reporting timescales As a result of Covid-19, new regulations, the Accounts and Audit (Coronavirus) (Amendment) Regulations 2020 No. 
404, have been published and came into force on 30 April 2020. This announced a change to publication date for 
final, audited accounts from 31 July to 30 November 2020 for all relevant authorities. We worked with the Council to 
deliver our audit in line with the revised reporting timescale.

Impact on our risk assessment

► Valuation of Property Plant and Equipment The Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS), the body setting the standards for property valuations, issued 
guidance to valuers highlighting that the uncertain impact of Covid-19 on markets might cause a valuer to conclude 
that there is a material uncertainty. Caveats around this material uncertainty have been included in the year-end 
valuation reports produced by the Council’s external valuer. We consider that the material uncertainties disclosed by 
the valuer gave rise to an additional risk relating to disclosures on the valuation of property, plant and equipment. 

► Disclosures on Going Concern Financial plans for 2020/21 and medium term financial plans will need revision for Covid-19. We considered the 
unpredictability of the current environment gave rise to a risk that the Council would not appropriately disclose the 
key factors relating to going concern, underpinned by managements assessment with particular reference to Covid-
19 and the Council’s actual year end financial position and performance. 

► Events after the balance sheet date We identified an increased risk that further events after the balance sheet date concerning the current Covid-19 
pandemic will need to be disclosed. The amount of detail required in the disclosure needed to reflect the specific 
circumstances of the Council.

Impact on the scope of our audit

► Information Produced by the Entity (IPE) We identified an increased risk around the completeness, accuracy, and appropriateness of information produced by 
the entity due to the inability of the audit team to verify original documents or re-run reports on-site from the 
Council’s systems. We undertook the following to address this risk:

• Used the screen sharing function of Microsoft Teams to evidence re-running of reports used to generate the IPE 
we audited; and

• Agree IPE to scanned documents or other system screenshots.

► Consultation requirements Additional EY consultation requirements concerning the impact on auditor reports. The changes to audit risks and 
audit approach changed the level of work we needed to perform.

18



Ref: EY-000092651-01

The tables below set out the results and conclusions on the significant areas of the audit process.

Peterborough City Council 5

Area of Work Conclusion

► Financial statements Unqualified – the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council as at 
31 March 2020 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended. 

Our audit opinion reported:

• Material uncertainty relating to going concern: We draw attention to Note 44 in the financial 
statements, which describes the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern. As stated in Note 
44, this indicates that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Authority’s 
ability to continue providing the current level of services without an increase in planned funding. Our 
opinion was not modified in respect of this matter.

• Emphasis of matter – Property, Plant and Equipment: We draw attention to Note 22 and Note 43 of the 
financial statements, which describe the valuation uncertainty the Authority is facing as a result of 
COVID-19 in relation to property valuations.  Our opinion was not modified in respect of this matter.

► Consistency of other information published with the 
financial statements

Other information published with the financial statements was consistent with the Annual Account. 

► Concluding on the Council’s arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness

As a result of the procedures performed we modified our value for money conclusion and issued an 
adverse opinion. This is to recognise that the structural financial resilience pressures and concerns facing 
the Authority before and after the Covid-19 pandemic have a significant and pervasive impact on the 
Authority’s ability to secure adequate arrangements for Value for Money in its use of resources. Financial 
management, decision making, partnership working; and Challenges for the next year.

See Section 4 for further details. 

Area of Work Conclusion

Reports by exception:

► Consistency of Governance Statement The Governance Statement was consistent with our understanding of the Council.

► Public interest report We had no matters to report in the public interest.

► Written recommendations to the Council, which 
should be copied to the Secretary of State

We had no matters to report.

► Other actions taken in relation to our responsibilities 
under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014

We had no matters to report. 

Executive Summary (cont’d)

Opinion on the Council’s:

19



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Executive Summary (cont’d)

Peterborough City Council 6

As a result of the above we have also:

Area of Work Conclusion

Reporting to the National Audit Office (NAO) on our 
review of the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts 
return (WGA). 

HM Treasury (HMT) have closed the 2019/20 data submission cycle and it is no longer possible for entities 
to submit their cycle 2 data. They are not putting in place alternative arrangements for 2019/20 data 
collection. It has been confirmed by HMT that this removes the audit responsibility to issue an assurance 
statement in respect of the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts consolidation pack.

Area of Work Conclusion

Issued a report to those charged with governance of 
the Council communicating significant findings 
resulting from our audit.

Our Audit Results Report was issued on 21 June 2021

Issued a certificate that we have completed the audit in 
accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014 and the National Audit 
Office’s 2015 Code of Audit Practice.

Our certificate was issued on 16 May 2022

We would like to take this opportunity to thank the Council’s staff for their assistance during the course of our work. 

Neil Harris
Associate Partner
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

20



Ref: EY-000092651-
01

Section 2

Purpose and 
Responsibilities

e
Responsibilities

21



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Purpose

Peterborough City Council 8

The Purpose of this Letter

The purpose of this annual audit letter is to communicate to Members and external stakeholders, including members of the public, the key issues arising from 
our work, which we consider should be brought to the attention of the Council. 

We have already reported the detailed findings from our audit work in our 2019/20 Audit Results Report to the 21 June 2021 Audit Committee, representing 
those charged with governance. We do not repeat those detailed findings in this letter. The matters reported here are the most significant for the Council.

22



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Responsibilities

Peterborough City Council 9

Responsibilities of the Appointed Auditor

Our 2019/20 audit work has been undertaken in accordance with the Audit Plan that we issued on 9 March 2020 and is conducted in accordance with the National 
Audit Office's 2015 Code of Audit Practice, International Standards on Auditing (UK), and other guidance issued by the National Audit Office. 

As auditors we are responsible for:

► Expressing an opinion:

► On the 2019/20 financial statements; and

► On the consistency of other information published with the financial statements.

► Forming a conclusion on the arrangements the Council has to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

► Reporting by exception:

► If the annual governance statement is misleading or not consistent with our understanding of the Council;

► Any significant matters that are in the public interest; 

► Any written recommendations to the Council, which should be copied to the Secretary of State; and

► If we have discharged our duties and responsibilities as established by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and Code of Audit Practice. 

Alongside our work on the financial statements, we also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO) on your Whole of Government Accounts return. The 
extent of our review and the nature of our report are specified by the NAO.

Responsibilities of the Council

The Council is responsible for preparing and publishing its statement of accounts accompanied by an Annual Governance Statement (AGS). In the AGS, the Council 
reports publicly each year on how far it complies with its own code of governance, including how it has monitored and evaluated the effectiveness of its governance 
arrangements in year, and any changes planned in the coming period. 

The Council is also responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

23



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Section 3

Financial Statement 
Audit

24



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Peterborough City Council 11

Key Issues

The Council’s Statement of Accounts is an important tool for the Council to show how it has used public money and how it can demonstrate its financial 
management and financial health.

We audited the Council and Group’s Statement of Accounts in line with the National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of Audit Practice, International Standards on 
Auditing (UK), and other guidance issued by the National Audit Office and issued an unqualified audit report on 21 June 2021.

Our detailed findings were reported to the 21 June 2021 Audit Committee.

The key issues identified as part of our audit were as follows:

Financial Statement Audit

Significant Risk Conclusion

Misstatements due to fraud or error

The financial statements as a whole are not free of material 
misstatements whether caused by fraud or error.

As identified in ISA (UK) 240, management is in a unique position 
to perpetrate fraud because of its ability to manipulate 
accounting records directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent 
financial statements by overriding controls that otherwise 
appear to be operating effectively. 

We identify and respond to this fraud risk on every audit 
engagement.

Our mandatory procedures did not identify any instances of management override. 

As reported in our Audit Plan, our work to identify fraud risks during the planning stages 
identified those areas of the accounts that involve management estimates and judgements as 
the key areas at risk of manipulation. The identified areas were:

• the incorrect capitalisation of revenue expenditure and REFCUS.

• the incorrect application of MRP accounting.

• inappropriate use of capital receipts.

The results of our work on these specific risks are set out on the following pages. 

25



Ref: EY-000092651-01 Peterborough City Council 12

Significant Risk Conclusion

Misstatements due to fraud or error – the incorrect capitalisation of 
revenue expenditure and REFCUS

The Authority is under financial pressure to achieve budget and maintain 
reserve balances above the minimum approved levels. Manipulating 
expenditure is a key way to achieve these targets.

We consider the risk applies to capitalisation of revenue expenditure and 
revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (REFCUS). Management 
could manipulate revenue expenditure by incorrectly capitalising expenditure 
which is revenue in nature and should be charged to the comprehensive income 
and expenditure account.

In 2019/20 the Authority has incurred £64.0 million capital expenditure (of 
which REFCUS represented £19.0 million).

Our mandatory procedures did not identify any instances of incorrect capitalisation of 
revenue expenditure. 

• Our sample testing of additions to property, plant and equipment found that they had 
been correctly classified as capital and included at the correct value.

• Our sample testing of additions to property, plant and equipment did not identify any 
revenue items that were incorrectly classified. 

• Our sample testing of REFCUS transactions found that they had been correctly classified 
and the expenditure met the definition of allowable expenditure, or was incurred under 
direction from the secretary of state.

• Our data analytical procedures did not identify any journal entries that incorrectly 
moved expenditure into capital codes.

Misstatements due to fraud or error – the incorrect application of MRP 
accounting

The Authority is under significant financial pressure to achieve budget and 
maintain reserve balances above the minimum approved levels. Manipulating 
expenditure is a key way to achieve these targets. We consider the risk applies 
to application and calculation of the minimum revenue provision. 

The Authority must make an annual contribution from revenue to reduce its 
overall borrowing requirement. This is termed the Minimum Revenue Provision 
(MRP). The MRP is determined prudently in accordance with statutory 
guidance.

Over the last 18 months, the Authority’s approach to MRP has been subject to 
media attention as well as scrutiny by Ministry of Housing, Communities & 
Local Government (MHCLG). Given this level of scrutiny and that MRP could be 
manipulated to artificially reduce expenditure we have identified the MRP 
calculation as a significant risk.

Our mandatory procedures did not identify any issues with the application of the MRP 
accounting. 

• Our testing confirmed that the MRP calculation met the statutory guidance. 

• Our re-performance of the MRP calculation did not identify any material misstatements 
although we did identify some trivial adjustments which would need to be applied in 
future periods to ensure a cumulative material error does to arise.

• Our review of the MRP policy and disclosure did not identify any material audit issues. 

• There are some implications for MRP as a result of the Empower loan impairment but 
these will relate to 2020/21 and we will cover as part of that audit period. 

The key issues identified as part of our audit were as follows: (cont’d)

Financial Statement Audit (cont’d)

26



Ref: EY-000092651-01 Peterborough City Council 13

Significant Risk Conclusion

Misstatements due to fraud or error – inappropriate use of capital receipts

The Authority is under significant financial pressure to achieve its revenue 
budget and maintain reserve balances above the minimum approved levels. 
Manipulating expenditure is a key way of achieving these targets.

We consider the risk applies to the application and use of capital receipts in the 
financial statements.

The adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulation 
changes the amounts charged to General Fund balances. Regulations are 
varied and complex, resulting in a risk that management misstatement 
accounting adjustments to manipulate the General Fund balance. We have 
identified the risk to be higher for adjustments concerning the application of 
useable capital receipts and deferred capital receipts. 

Our mandatory procedures did not identify any instances of inappropriate use of capital 
receipts. 

• Our sample testing of the application of capital receipts confirmed that they met the 
correct definition of funding sources.

• Our sample testing of deferred capital receipts found that conditions had been correctly 
applied.

• Our data analytical procedures performed to identify and test journal entries 
adjustments that impact capital receipts did not identify any issues. 

Valuation of property, plant and equipment assets under depreciated 
replacement cost model

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) represents a significant balance in the 
Authority’s accounts and are subject to valuation changes, impairment reviews 
and depreciation charges. 

Material judgemental inputs and estimation techniques are required to 
calculate the PPE balances held in the balance sheet. For assets valued using 
depreciated replacement cost (DRC) this risk is heightened due to the 
specialised nature of the assets and insufficient availability of market-based 
evidence to assist the valuation. 

As the Authority’s DRC asset base is significant (£266 million), and the outputs 
from the valuer are subject to estimation, there is a significant risk PPE may be 
under/overstated or the associated accounting entries incorrectly posted.  

ISAs (UK and Ireland) 500 and 540 require us to undertake procedures on the 
use of experts and assumptions underlying significant accounting estimates.

Our consideration of the work performed by the Authority’s valuer, including the adequacy 
of the scope of the work performed, their professional capabilities and the results of their 
work did not identify any issues.

Our EY Real Estates team did not identify any material issues with the underlying 
assumptions used to value to DRC assets. 

However, they did identify some issues with some of the valuer’s methodology which we 
have shared with management. 

Our review of DRC assets not subject to valuation in 2019/20 confirmed that the remaining 
asset base was not materially misstated.

Our consideration of the useful economic lives in the most recent valuation did not identify 
any issues.

Accounting entries had been correctly disclosed in the financial statements.

Note we did identify some audit adjustments in relation to property, plant and equipment. 
These were reported in the Audit Results Report.

The key issues identified as part of our audit were as follows: (cont’d)

Financial Statement Audit (cont’d)

27



Ref: EY-000092651-01 Peterborough City Council 14

Significant Risk Conclusion

Valuation of Non-DRC PPE assets & Investment Property

The Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS), the body setting the 
standards for property valuations, issued guidance to valuers highlighting that 
the uncertain impact of Covid-19 on markets might cause a valuer to conclude 
that there is a material uncertainty. Caveats around this material uncertainty 
have been included in the year-end valuation reports produced by the 
Authority’s external valuer. We consider that the material uncertainties 
disclosed by the valuer gave rise to an additional risk relating to disclosures on 
the valuation of property, plant and equipment. We therefore increased our 
inherent risk on valuation of Non-DRC PPE assets & Investment Property to 
significant.

As the Authority’s non-DRC and investment property asset base is significant 
(£119 million), and the outputs from the valuer are subject to estimation, there 
is a significant risk PPE may be under/overstated or the associated accounting 
entries incorrectly posted.  

ISAs (UK and Ireland) 500 and 540 require us to undertake procedures on the 
use of experts and assumptions underlying fair value estimates.

Our consideration of the work performed by the Authority’s valuer, including the adequacy 
of the scope of the work performed, their professional capabilities and the results of their 
work did not identify any issues.

Our EY Real Estates team did not identify any material issues with the underlying 
assumptions used to value to non-DRC assets. 

However, they did identify some issues with some of the valuer’s methodology which we 
have shared with management. 

Our review of non-DRC assets not subject to valuation in 2019/20 confirmed that the 
remaining asset base was not materially misstated.

Our consideration of the useful economic lives in the most recent valuation did not identify 
any issues.

Accounting entries had been correctly disclosed in the financial statements.

Note we did identify some audit adjustments in relation to property, plant and equipment. 
These were reported in the Audit Results Report.

The key issues identified as part of our audit were as follows: (cont’d)

Financial Statement Audit (cont’d)

28



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Peterborough City Council 15

The key issues identified as part of our audit were as follows: (cont’d)

Other Areas of Audit Focus Findings Conclusion

PFI accounting Our audit testing confirmed that there were no audit issues in the calculation of the PFI annual payments 
or the liability held in the balance sheet.

We have confirmed that the figures in the accounting models are consistent with the disclosures in the 
financial statements.

Pension Liability Valuation We were informed by the Pension Fund auditor that the Peterborough City Council pension fund 
investment assets are understated by £2.56 million. 

The Authority decided not to adjust for this difference on the ground of materiality and this was reported 
in the Council’s letter of representation to the auditor.

Recoverability of NHS Accounts Receivable Balances Our audit testing did not identify any issues with the recoverability of the NHS accounts receivable 
balances. 

Group Accounting Our audit testing did not identify any issues with the group accounts or the group scoping.

Going concern disclosure Officers carried out an assessment of the impact of Covid-19 on the Authority’s income, expenditure, 
balances and reserves to inform reporting to the Audit Committee and other members. These 
assessments were used to enhance the disclosure in the financial statements around the going concern 
assertion. 

We reviewed the assessment, focusing on the reasonableness of the financial impact assessment, cash 
flow and liquidity forecasts, known outcomes, sensitivities, mitigating actions and key assumptions, 
including around reductions in fees and charges. We also considered the adequacy of the revised 
disclosure note and its consistency with the going concern assessment and our audit procedures.

We reviewed the revised going concern disclosure and were satisfied that it adequately reflects the 
Authority’s assessment and informs the reader of the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the Authority’s 
finances. We completed our internal consultation with our Professional Practice Directorate on our audit 
work and assessment of the Authority’s going concern disclosure. This has resulted in a material 
uncertainty in our audit report as the Authority’s financial position casts significant doubt on their ability 
to continue to provide the current levels of service provision for the next 12 months and beyond.  

Financial Statement Audit (cont’d)

29



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Peterborough City Council 16

The key issues identified as part of our audit were as follows: (cont’d)

Other Audit Findings Conclusion

Recoverability of the 
Authority’s £23 
million loan to 
Empower Community 
Management LLP 
(Empower)

We reviewed the recoverability of the £23 million loan to Empower, taking account of conditions and events that took place before and after the 
balance sheet date. We agreed that it was appropriate for the Authority to make a post balance event adjustment and disclosure in the financial 
statements to recognise the conditions leading to an impairment of the loan and reclassification from short to long term debtors. 

We noted the judgement of the Authority that the impairment of the loan recognised in the audited 2019/2020 accounts was determined using a 
effective interest rate (2.1%), consistent with the Authority’s weighted average cost of capital as the likely decision to bring the asset 
management arrangements in-house is a more representative discount rate to estimate the carrying value of the loan as at 31 March 2020. This 
value was within a reasonable range of estimation and uncertainty to the 2.5% terms of the long-term refinancing agreed with Empower after the 
balance sheet date; and the effective interest rate we believe should have been used to determine the expected credit loss on the loan under 
IFRS9. The Authority’s disclosure in the financial statements appropriately sets out that in the unlikely event that the Authority were to seek an 
external provider to buy-out the finance and asset management arrangements under commercial terms, the enterprise value would be £15.4 
million. 

Whilst the Authority had taken the appropriate steps to seek specialist legal, professional and commercial advice on the events that took place 
with the financing of the loan since the balance sheet date; adjusting and reporting these circumstances in the 2019/2020 accounts and in 
decision making papers to Cabinet on 21 June 2021, nevertheless we believe there have been significant weaknesses in the governance 
arrangements with Empower Community Management LLP during the 2020/2021 financial year which has exposed the Authority to financial 
loss. Our specialist work has determined that the re-financing of the loan after the balance sheet had aggressive assumptions on debt/equity 
ratios, which we note the Authority also recognised in its decision making papers. Empower had proposed additional income streams from P2P 
trading, however we understand from the Authority that this could not be included in the model for valuation as the contracts had not been 
signed.

We recommend that the Authority:

• Reviews any similar finance arrangements to ensure that there is not a risk of exposure to further financial loss. 

• Reviews the appropriateness of its Minimum Revenue Provision policy for capital loans in light of these events. 

• Should it decide to bring the solar panel assets and asset management arrangements in-house, obtains an up-to-date valuation of the assets 
as soon as practicable in order that the Authority can determine whether there are any additional indicators of impairment and the basis on 
which the solar panel assets are recognised for financial reporting and asset management purposes. 

Although we have yet to determine whether this would be an adjusting or non-adjusting event for the 2020/2021 financial statements, the 
Authority will need to obtain this information to make appropriate disclosures and accounting judgements in the 2020/2021 financial statements 
to reflect the conditions that are or are expected to be in place between now and the time when the audited accounts are authorised for issue.

We will follow-up all of these matters during our audit of the 2020/2021 Authority’s financial statements and in terms of arrangements for 
informed decision making, we will provide further reporting in our Value for Money arrangements narrative commentary as appropriate. 

Financial Statement Audit (cont’d)

30



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Financial Statement Audit (cont’d)

Peterborough City Council 17

Our application of materiality

When establishing our overall audit strategy, we determined a magnitude of uncorrected misstatements that we judged would be material for the financial 
statements as a whole.

Item Thresholds applied

Planning materiality We determined planning materiality to be £4.9 million, which is 1% of gross revenue expenditure 
reported in the accounts of £492 million.

We consider gross revenue expenditure to be one of the principal considerations for stakeholders in 
assessing the financial performance of the Council.

This results in a performance materiality, at 75% of our overall planning materiality, of £3.7 million. The 
performance materiality assigned for the group entity was £0.739 million.

Reporting threshold We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit differences in 
excess of £0.246 million across both the single and group entities.

We also identified the following areas where misstatement at a level lower than our overall materiality level might influence the reader. For these areas we 
developed an audit strategy specific to these areas. The areas identified and audit strategy applied include:

► Remuneration disclosures including any severance payments, exit packages, members allowances and termination benefits: We agreed disclosures back to 
source data and approved amounts applying a reduced materiality level of £1,000 in line with bandings disclosed in the financial statements.

► Related party transactions: We tested the completeness of related party disclosures and the accuracy of all disclosures by checking back to supporting 
evidence applying a reduced materiality level equal to the reporting threshold. 

► Audit Fees: We agree the figures back to the agreement with officers, applying a reduced materiality level of £1,000. 

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the quantitative measures of materiality discussed above and in light of other relevant qualitative 
considerations. 

31



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Section 4

Value for Money

32



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Peterborough City Council 19

Value for Money

We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. This 
is known as our value for money conclusion.

Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office. They comprise your arrangements to:

► Take informed decisions;

► Deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and

► Work with partners and other third parties.

Proper

arrangements for

securing value

for money

Informed

decision

making

Working with 

partners and 

third parties

Sustainable 

resource 

deployment

We identified one significant risk in relation to these arrangements. The tables below present the 
findings of our work in response to the risks identified and any other significant weaknesses or 
issues to bring to your attention.

We have performed the procedures outlined in our audit plan. We identified the following significant 
weaknesses in the Council’s arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and 
deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. 

We concluded our audit procedures on your arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in your use of resources and modified our value for money conclusion and issued an 
adverse opinion. This was to recognise that the structural financial resilience pressures and 
concerns facing the Authority before and after the Covid-19 pandemic have a significant and 
pervasive impact on the Authority’s ability to secure adequate arrangements for Value for Money in 
its use of resources.

On 16 April 2020 the National Audit Office published an update to auditor guidance in relation to 
the 2019/20 Value for Money assessment in the light of Covid-19. This clarified that in 
undertaking the 2019/20 Value for Money assessment auditors should consider NHS bodies’ 
response to Covid-19 only as far as it relates to the 2019/20 financial year; only where clear 
evidence comes to the auditor’s attention of a significant failure in arrangements as a result of 
Covid-19 during the financial year, would it be appropriate to recognise a significant risk in 
relation to the 2019/20 VFM arrangements conclusion. 

33



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Peterborough City Council 20

Significant Risk Conclusion

We reported in previous years our views on the financial resilience of 
the Authority and in particular the scale of the financial challenge it 
faces. Like most local authorities, the Authority’s finances continue to 
be stretched. There are significant gaps in the budget over the period 
of the Medium Term Financial Strategy which have still not been 
addressed. 

The cumulative unmitigated budget gap to 2022/23 is £30.6 million 
and this also includes the successful delivery of £26.3 million of 
savings up to that period and some savings which are still subject to 
finalisation. It also includes a £10 million capitalisation direction 
currently with MHCLG for approval. 

The Chief Financial Officer has expressed concerns on the fragility of 
the Authority’s financial position in the robustness statement 
presented to 25th February 2020 Cabinet supporting the 2020/2021 
budget. In particular, there is a risk the Chief Financial Officer could 
trigger the production of a Section 114 report if the Authority could 
not report a balanced budget for 2020/21, where:

1. the Capitalisation Direction approval is not confirmed by 31 March 
2020; or

2. realistic transformational plans, for reducing the cost of service 
delivery required to deliver a balanced and sustainable budget for 
future years, are not developed, and implementation commenced 
by July 2020.

Whilst the Authority is taking action to identify ways to bridge the 
gaps, there remains a significant risk to its financial resilience.

To address this risk, we planned: 

Phase 1 – Financial Resilience Concerns (March to April 2020):

• Robust review of the Authority’s Medium Term Financial Strategy and the concerns raised by the 
Chief Financial Officer, including correspondence with MHCLG on the capitalisation direction 
application; 

• Developing an understanding of how the Authority identifies its budget gaps and risk mitigations;

• Consideration of exercising our statutory powers at this point (by April 2020) and if appropriate 
issuing a statutory written recommendation under section 24 (schedule 7) of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014.

Phase 2 – Authority’s Response to Financial Resilience Concerns (April to July 2020):

• Developing an understanding of how the Authority quantifies and quality assures its savings 
plans;

• Reviewing the extent to which the Authority is addressing the future budget gaps identified within 
its Medium Term Financial Strategy, including the robustness of assumptions and judgements 
associated with savings and transformation plans. 

See the following slide for details of our audit procedures performed. 

Value for Money (cont’d)

34



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Peterborough City Council 21

Conclusion

For both phases of the risk we have engaged with our Strategy and Transactions Team to provide specialist support to work with the audit team in reviewing, challenging 
and exercising appropriate professional scepticism on the Authority’s medium-term financial strategy and proposed transformation saving plans. 

We prepared a detailed scope of work for phase 1 and 2 and agreed this with officers at the Authority. We have now completed our procedures across both phases. 

Phase 1 Conclusion: Our modelling suggests that the Authority’s forecasts within the current financial year and over the medium-term financial strategy are both 
reasonable and appropriate compared with our base-case economic scenario. It is however noted that the financial challenge the Authority is facing, is forecast to be 
considerably more severe in our more volatile economic conditions. 

The Authority’s ability to deal with these challenges is significantly hindered by their reserve position, which is insufficient in dealing with the forecast financial challenge 
beyond the current financial year.

The Authority’s financial resilience is therefore a significant hinderance on the Authority’s ability to provide value for money from public resources, as the financial 
uncertainty they face over the medium-term makes it difficult for the Authority to make meaningful and sustainable decisions that provide value for money. We therefore 
expect to modify our value for money conclusion.

Phase 2 Conclusion: Our analysis of the Authority’s response to their financial resilience concerns found that for the latest development of the 2021/22 savings plan, the 
Authority exhibited good practice in the design principles of the plan. Given the timescales for finalising the Medium Term Financial Strategy, we found the Authority had 
given appropriate consideration to the budget gap, and developed the expected level of key documentation for current saving proposals. Furthermore, the allocation of 
these savings was appropriately distributed between departments as well as thematically.

It was also found that the Authority had comprehensive governance processes established for developing, monitoring and reporting against saving proposals. Evidence was 
provided that these processes are regularly conducted and receive the appropriate level of political and strategic oversight.

Nevertheless, despite the good practices that the Authority exhibits in developing well designed and governed savings proposals, the size of the current budget gap should 
be viewed as a significant risk in terms of delivering a balanced budget in 2021/22. The budget gap of £35.6 million in 2021/22, reflects a significant uplift in the savings 
target compared with previous delivery, and furthermore reflects a significant portion of service expenditure levels, which makes achievability a high risk for the Authority. 

Capitalisation Direction: In October 2020 the Authority approached MHCLG to enable the further exploration of alternatives to issuing a Section 114 notice. The Authority 
has been engaged in regular discussions with MHCLG in respect of the Authority’s finances. In February 2021 the Authority received conditional confirmation for a 
Capitalisation Direction of up to £4.8 million in 2020/21 and approval in principle a Capitalisation Direction of up to £20.0 million in 2021/22.  This exceptional support has 
enabled the Authority to prepare a balanced budget for 2021/22.  

Overall Conclusion: While the Authority demonstrates good development of their medium term financial strategies and exhibits a good understanding of the saving 
challenges they are facing the budget gap is still significant. We are therefore modifying our value for money conclusion to recognise that the structural financial resilience 
pressures and concerns facing the Authority before and after the Covid-19 pandemic have a significant and pervasive impact on the Authority’s ability to secure adequate 
arrangements for Value for Money in its use of resources. 

Value for Money (cont’d)

35



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Section 5

Other Reporting 
Issues

36



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Whole of Government Accounts

We are required to perform the procedures specified by the National Audit Office on the accuracy of the consolidation pack prepared by the Council for Whole of 
Government Accounts purposes.

HM Treasury (HMT) have closed the 2019/20 data submission cycle and it is no longer possible for entities to submit their cycle 2 data. They are not putting in place 
alternative arrangements for 2019/20 data collection. It has been confirmed by HMT that this removes the audit responsibility to issue an assurance statement in 
respect of the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts consolidation pack.

Annual Governance Statement

We are required to consider the completeness of disclosures in the Council’s annual governance statement, identify any inconsistencies with the other information of 
which we are aware from our work, and consider whether it is misleading.

We completed this work and did not identify any areas of concern.

Report in the Public Interest

We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to consider whether, in the public interest, to report on any matter that comes to our attention in 
the course of the audit in order for it to be considered by the Council or brought to the attention of the public.

We did not identify any issues which required us to issue a report in the public interest.

Written Recommendations

We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to designate any audit recommendation as one that requires the Council to consider it at a public 
meeting and to decide what action to take in response. 

We did not identify any issues which required us to issue a written recommendation.

Other Reporting Issues

Peterborough City Council 23

37



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Objections Received

We did not receive any objections to the 2019/20 financial statements from members of the public. 

Other Powers and Duties

We identified no issues during our audit that required us to use our additional powers under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. 

Independence

We communicated our assessment of independence in our Audit Results Report to the Audit Committee on 21 June 2021. In our professional judgement the firm is 
independent and the objectivity of the audit engagement partner and audit staff has not been compromised within the meaning regulatory and professional 
requirements. 

Control Themes and Observations

As part of our work, we obtained an understanding of internal control sufficient to plan our audit and determine the nature, timing and extent of testing performed. 
Although our audit was not designed to express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control, we are required to communicate to you significant deficiencies in 
internal control identified during our audit. 

We have adopted a fully substantive audit approach and have therefore not tested the operation of controls. 

We did identified one other control finding which we would like to bring to your attention:

• As part of our procedures performed in relation to the Authority’s contracts register we identified two significant contracts which were not held on the register. 

Recommendation: We recommend that the Authority revisit their controls covering the completeness of the contracts register and ensure that all significant 
contracts are recorded on the register.

Peterborough City Council 24

Other Reporting Issues (cont’d)

38



Ref: EY-000092651-
01

Section 6

Focused on your 
future

39



Ref: EY-000092651-
01

26

Focused on your future

Peterborough City Council

Implementation of IFRS 16 Leases

In previous reports to the Audit Committee, we have highlighted the issue of new accounting standards and regulatory developments. IFRS 16 introduces a number of 
significant changes which go beyond accounting technicalities. For example, the changes have the potential to impact on procurement processes as more information 
becomes available on the real cost of leases. The key accounting impact is that assets and liabilities in relation to significant lease arrangements previously accounted for 
as operating leases will need to be recognised on the balance sheet. IFRS 16 requires all substantial leases to be accounted for using the acquisition approach, 
recognising the rights acquired to use an asset. IFRS 16 does not come into effect for the Council until 1 April 2022. However, officers should be acting now to assess the 
Council’s leasing positions and secure the required information to ensure the Councill will be fully compliance with the 2022/2023 Code. The following table summarises 
some key areas officers should be progressing.

IFRS 16 theme Summary of key measures

Data collection Management should:

• Put in place a robust process to identify all arrangements that convey the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time. The 
adequacy of this process should be discussed with auditors.

• Classify all such leases into low value; short-term; peppercorn; portfolio and individual leases

• Identify, collect, log and check all significant data points that affect lease accounting including: the term of the lease; reasonably certain 
judgements on extension or termination; dates of rent reviews; variable payments; grandfathered decisions; non-lease components; and discount 
rate to be applied.

Policy Choices The Council needs to agree on certain policy choices. In particular:

• Whether to adopt a portfolio approach

• What low value threshold to set and agree with auditors

• Which asset classes, if any, are management adopting the practical expedient in relation to non-lease components

• What is managements policy in relation to discount rates to be used?

Code adaptations for the 
public sector

Finance teams should understand the Code adaptations for the public sector. The Code contains general adaptations, (e.g. the definition of a lease); 
transitional interpretations (e.g. no restatement of prior periods) and adaptations that apply post transition (e.g. use of short-term lease exemption).

Transitional accounting 
arrangements

Finance teams should understand the accounting required on first implementation of IFRS 16. The main impact is on former operating leases where 
the Council is lessee. However, there can be implications for some finance leases where the Council is lessee; and potentially for sub-leases, where the 
Council is a lessor, that were operating leases under the old standard.

Ongoing accounting 
arrangements

Finance teams need to develop models to be able to properly account for initial recognition and subsequent measurement of right of use assets and 
associated liabilities. This is more complex than the previous standard due to more regular remeasurements and possible modifications after certain 
trigger events.

Remeasurements and 
modifications

Finance teams need to familiarise themselves with when the ‘remeasurement’ or ‘modification’ of a lease is required and what to do under each 
circumstance. A modification can lead to an additional lease being recognised. It is also important to know when remeasurements require a new 
discount rate is to be applied to the lease.

40



Ref: EY-000092651-
01

Audit Fees
Appendix A

Peterborough City Council 27

41



Ref: EY-000092651-
01

Our final fee for 2019/20 is in line with the fee determined by the PSAA.

Peterborough City Council 28

Audit Fees

Description

Final Fee 2019/20

£

Planned Fee 2019/20

£

Scale Fee 2019/20

£

Final Fee 2018/19

£

Total Audit Fee – Code work 175,549 213,271 83,570 106,334

We agreed our planned fee of £213,271 with Management and reported in our Audit Results Report to Audit Committee on 21 June 2021.

In March 2022 PSAA determined that the total fee variation for Peterborough City Council 2019/20 would be £91,979. 

Total audit engagement hours for the audit exceeded 3,300 hours. A commercial benchmark for an audit of this size and complexity would be in the region of £350,000. 

42



29

EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

About EY
EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction
and advisory services. The insights and quality
services we deliver help build trust and confidence
in the capital markets and in economies the world
over. We develop outstanding leaders who team to
deliver on our promises to all of our stakeholders.
In so doing, we play a critical role in building a better 
working world for our people, for our clients and for
our communities.

EY refers to the global organization, and may refer
to one or more, of the member firms of Ernst & Young
Global Limited, each of which is a separate legal entity.
Ernst & Young Global Limited, a UK company limited
by guarantee, does not provide services to clients.
For more information about our organization, please
visit ey.com.

© 2018 EYGM Limited.
All Rights Reserved.

ED None

EY-000070901-01 (UK) 07/18. CSG London.

In line with EY’s commitment to minimise its
impact on the environment, this document has
been printed on paper with a high recycled content.

This material has been prepared for general informational purposes
only and is not intended to be relied upon as accounting, tax, or other 
professional advice. Please refer to your advisors for specific advice.

ey.com

43



T
his page is intentionally left blank

44



   
 

 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM No. 6 

20 JUNE 2022  PUBLIC REPORT  

 

Cabinet Member(s) 

responsible:  
Cllr Andy Coles, Cabinet Member for Finance and Corporate Governance 

Contact Officer(s):  Cecilie Booth, Interim Corporate Director of Resources 

Kirsty Nutton, Acting Service Director: Financial Services 

Tel. 452520  

Tel. 384590 

   

 BUDGET MONITORING REPORT FINAL OUTTURN 2021/22 

RECOMMENDATIONS  

FROM: Interim Corporate Director of Resources Deadline date:  10 June 2022 

  It is recommended that the Audit Committee notes:   
   
1. The final outturn position for 2021/22 (subject to finalisation of the statutory statement of accounts)  of 

a £4.5m underspend on the Council’s revenue budget.  
 
2. The reserves position outlined in section 7, which includes a contribution to of £4.5m to reserves 

balances, resulting from the underspend highlighted in the revenue outturn report in Appendix A. 
 

3. The outturn spending of £79.3m in the Council’s capital programme in 2021/22 outlined in section 7. 
 
4. That the financial performance for the year is a positive first step and is line with the Improvement Plan 

and Tactical Budget approved by Council, however, the financial challenge for the Council remains and 
requires continued focus and discipline to deliver per both aforementioned plans. 

 
5. The performance against the prudential indicators outlined in Appendix C. 

 
6. The performance on the payment of creditors, collection performance for debtors, local taxation and 

benefit overpayments outlined in Appendix D. 

 

  

1.0 ORIGIN OF THE REPORT  

1.1 This report is to the Audit Committee as part of their annual financial reporting cycle. 

 

2.0 PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT  

2.1 The report provides Audit Committee with the outturn position for both the revenue budget and 
capital programme for 2021/22. 

2.2 The report contains performance information on the payment of creditors and collection performance 
for debtors, local taxation and benefit overpayments.  

2.3 The report is for Audit Committee to consider under its terms of reference 2.2.1.16:  

“To review the annual statement of accounts, specifically, to consider whether appropriate 

accounting policies have been followed and whether there are concerns arising from the financial 

statements or from the audit that need to be brought to the attention of the council.” 

45



   
 

 
 

 

3.0 TIMESCALE  

Is this a Major Policy Item/ Statutory Plan  No  If yes, date for Cabinet meeting   n/a  

 

 

4.0  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

4.1 This section provides a summary of the Council’s financial performance for 2021/22.  From requesting 

Exceptional Financial Support from DLUHC in order to set a balanced budget and receiving scrutiny 
reviews from DLUHC, to the implementation of the Improvement Plan and resulting moratorium on 

expenditure.  The final £4.5m underspend is a positive first step for the Council on delivering its core 
priority of financial sustainability.  However, the savings identified in the 2021/22 tactical budget 

require focus to ensure delivery at the same time as identifying opportunities to deliver financial 

sustainability over the medium to long term.  The financial operating context for the Council remains 
highly challenging with new uncertainties and risks creating additional pressures such as the exposure 

to inflation risk.  The Council must continue to challenge itself on how every penny of its money is 
spent.   

 
4.2 During 2020, the impact from the pandemic meant that the Council was incurring additional costs and 

experiencing demand and funding uncertainties for the Council.  At the time the Council was operating  

in a challenging financial environment with poor financial health and a weak financially resilient 
position.  Therefore, in October 2020 the Council commenced discussions with DLUHC which led to the 

agreement of Exceptional Financial Support (EFS), in the form of a capitalisation direction of £13.7m, 
which enabled the Council to set a balanced budget for 2021/22.  

 
4.3 At the end of 2020/21 financial year an estimated £12.8m net pressure for 2021/22 was forecast for 

continuing pandemic related pressures.  Therefore at the end of 2020/21 the Covid-19 Funding Reserve 

(C-19 Reserve) was created with £12.8m, with the expectation that this reserve would be used to fund 
the additional C-19 pressures carried forward into the new financial year. 

 
4.4 Based on the information known at the time, and given the continued uncertainties created from C-19 

social restrictions and related demand increases, in April 2021 the forecast outturn for 2021/22 was 
anticipated to exceed budget by £6.8m.  As more information became available, and uncertainties 

became known the forecast outturns for financial performance reduced in each of the following 

months.  Though budget pressures remained, the scale was lower than the Council’s service based 
officers originally estimated, and there was no requirement to use the C-19 Reserve as originally 

envisaged. This enabled the Council to amend its financial strategy during the summer of 2021 and to 
use the reserve and reduce the reliance on the Capitalisation Direction (EFS) it had budgeted to fund 

the revenue position of £13.7m.  This revised financial strategy was adopted to facilitate future year 
savings by avoiding borrowing costs and avoid the additional 1% penalty applied to EFS funding.  

 

4.5 Within the August BCR report the Council confirmed this change in financial strategy and proposed to 
complete a budget virement to reduce the Capitalisation Direction by £10.5m and use the C-19 Reserve 

instead. A balance of £2.3m was committed from the reserve to mitigate the risk of any arising C-19 or 
winter pressures. This approach was taken given that at the time Peterborough had been identified as 

having one of the highest infection rates in the country, with local hospitals struggling with sickness 

and demand levels. 
 

46



   
 

 
 

4.6 As part of the drafting of the Council’s Improvement Plan, a requirement from DLUHC for granting EFS, 
a plan for the development and creation of a sustainable medium term financial strategy was drafted, 

and later approved at full council in December. As part of this plan the Council’s DS151 Officer issued 
a moratorium instruction that restricted expenditure to essential statutory services across the 

organisation.  The Council also paused a number of capital investment schemes. The Improvement Plan 

recognised that restricting expenditure in the final months would protect the Council’s reserve 
balances to fund transformation, increase the Council’s financial resilience, and / or strategically 

support the following financial years budget.  
 

4.7 The revenue moratorium had an immediate impact on the Council’s forecast outturn which continued 
to improve until the end of the financial year.  The financial performance improved to remove the need 

to use any reserves or Capitalisation Direction to underpin the 2021/22 expenditure. The overall 

revenue outturn shows an underspend position of £4.5m for 2021/22. This underspend has enabled 
the Council to increase its General Fund balance by £1.3m to £7.3m (4% of the net revenue budget), 

and to contribute £3.2m to an inflation reserve to mitigate the current inflationary risk exposure during 
2022/23 and beyond.  

 

4.8 The following graph outlines this change in forecast capitalisation direction and reserves use 
throughout the year: 

 

 

5.0 FINAL REVENUE OUTTTURN 2021/22 

2021/22 Budget Position 

 

5.1 The revenue budget for 2021/22, agreed at Full Council on 3 March 2021, was approved at 
£187.3m.  Table 1 outlines the changes which have been made to the budget to arrive at the revised 

budget of £176.6m:  

 Table 1: Revised Budget 2021/22 £m  

Approved Budget 2021/22  187.255  

Transfer of IBCF and ASC grant from financing into People & Communities (12.933) 

Use of Reserves to fund expenditure:  

 People & Community  1.118 
 Place & Economy  0.114 

 Capacity Reserve Contribution  0.714 

 Other Reserve (Insurance and Parish’s)  0.283 

47



   
 

 
 

Revised Budget 2021/22 176.551  

 

 

Revenue Outturn  
 

5.2 The Council’s revenue outturn position for 2021/22 is an underspend of £4.5m with performance 

summarised by directorate in Table 2. 
 

5.3 The final financial performance should be recognised in the context of the impact, additional cost, and 

uncertainties caused by the Covid-19 (C-19) pandemic against a weak financial resilient position.  In 

October 2020, the Council commenced discussions with MHCLG (now DLUHC) in accordance with the 
amended CIPFA guidance on issuing a Section 114.   At the time of the discussion the Council was 

exposed to a series of significant unknowns in the Council’s operating environment on which to base 
its budget assumptions.  As a result of the conditions, and the limited recourse to reserves, the Council 

had been unable to address its underlying funding shortfall through budget savings alone.    The Council 
received confirmation that MHCLG (DLUHC) would provide exceptional support in 2021/22 of up to 

£20.0m which was conditional on working with MHCLG (DLUHC) to develop a delivery model that 

secured financial sustainability.  With the use of exceptional support, provided by MHCLG (DLUHC) in 
the form of a capitalisation direction of £13.7m, the Council was able to set a balanced budget for 

2021/22. 

Table 2: Revenue outturn 2021/22 

Directorate 
Budget 

 £k 

Final 
Outturn 

Spend 
 £k 

 

Cont. to 
Reserve 

 £k 
Variance 

 £k 

Januarys 
Variance  

£k 
Movement 

 £k 
Overall 
Status 

Chief Executives 1,225 1,051 0 (173) (100) (73) Underspend 

Governance 4,192 4,004 0 (188) (149) (39) Underspend 

Place & Economy 23,729 20,046 539 (3,144) (1,971) (1,172) Underspend 

People & Communities 85,091 81,816 192 (3,083) (889) (2,194) Underspend 

Publ ic Health (188) (1,097) 907 (3) 0 (3) On Budget  

Resources 22,797 18,378 418 (4,001) (3,030) (971) Underspend 

Customer & Digital Services 7,857 6,877 0 (980) (718) (262) Underspend 

Bus iness Improvement 1,050 1,016 0 (34) (29) (4) Underspend 

Capital Financing  30,798 27,357 0 (3,440) (2,687) (753) Underspend 

Total Expenditure 176,551 159,448 2,055 (15,048) (9,575) (5,473) Underspend 

Financing 
(173,317) (176,038) 9,991 7,270 6,341 929 

Reduction in 

the Use of 
Reserves 

Exceptional Financial 
Support (Capitalisation 
Direction) (3,234) 0  3,234 3,234 0 

Reduction in 
Borrowing 

Net (0) (16,590) 12,047 (4,543) 0 (4,543) Breakeven 

 

 
5.4 At the end of the previous financial year, 2020/21, the Council created a £12.8m specific Covid-19 

funding reserve in order to fund future anticipated C-19 pressures for the new 2021/22 financial year.  

This reserve was able to be created in the previous financial year from the improved position from 
continued government support and funding for the sector (announced throughout the year) and a 

delay in the expected Covid-19 related demand pressures.  
 

5.5 The following chart summarises the change in position at a directorate level through the 2021/22 
financial year: 

48



   
 

 
 

 

 
*Change in November position referenced in section 5.7 

5.6 In April 2021 a forecast overspend of £6.8m for 2021/22 was estimated however it was revised 

downwards as the year progressed which resulted in the commitment to fund C-19 related pressures 
from the C-19 reserve to be lower than originally envisioned at the point of setting the budget.   
 

5.7 As a result the Council was able to amend its financial strategy for the year to reflect the use of the C-
19 reserve to fund the 2021/22 revenue budget instead of undertaking additional borrowing allowed 

through the granting of a Capitalisation Direction from DLUHC (Exceptional Financial Support (EFS)).   
This strategy was adopted in order to facilitate future year savings in borrowing costs and avoid the 

additional 1% penalty applied to EFS funding.  
 

5.8 Within the August BCR report the Council proposed to complete a budget virement to reduce the 

Capitalisation Direction by £10.5m, and use the Covid-19 reserve instead, leaving £2.3m in the reserve 
to mitigate any arising Covid-19 or winter pressures. At this time, Peterborough had been identified as 

having one of the highest infection rates in the country, therefore highlighting the risk that the impacts 
of Covid-19 remained.  

 

5.9 At the end of November the Council’s DS151 Officer issued a moratorium instruction that restricted 
expenditure to essential statutory services across the organisation. The Council also paused a number 

of capital schemes and introduced a moratorium on capital expenditure. Within a month of the 
moratorium being in place the forecast outturn position improved by £5.1m (with the change being 

highlighted in the chart in section 4.8). The majority of the revised forecasts were a result of budget 
managers re-evaluating likely spend between this point and the end of the year and reducing the 

estimate. In addition, additional savings were forecast for:  

 training, car allowances and travel and subsistence 

 holding vacant posts  

 on supplies and services - furniture and equipment, hospitality, publications, subscriptions, 
stationery, conferences, hire of premises, printing.  

 
5.10 The forecast outturn position throughout the remaining months of the year continued to improve 

concluding with a £4.5m underspend.  The majority of these variances have already been considered 

or factored into the 2022/23 budget, this includes: 

49



   
 

 
 

 Capital Financing (cost of borrowing – interest and debt repayments) 

 ICT hardware and software 

 Children Social Care   

 Electricity income generated from the Energy from Waste facility. 

 Business Rates Pool income  

 
5.11 However some of the budget performance variances were the result of a one-off events, primarily the 

pension cost reduction due to the cessation of Vivacity and the loss of culture and leisure and parking 
income resulting from the tail end of pandemic. The Council has put measures in place to mitigate the 

latter, and is developing plans within Culture and Leisure service, to ensure these pressures are 
minimised and deliver an on-going saving from 2022/23 onwards. 

 

5.12 In summary the final £4.5m underspend is a positive first step for the Council on delivering its core 
priority of financial sustainability.  However, the savings identified in the 2021/22 tactical budget 

require focus to ensure delivery at the same time as identifying opportunities to deliver financial 
sustainability over the medium to long term.  The financial operating context for the Council  remains 

highly challenging with new uncertainties and risks creating additional pressures such as the exposure 
to inflation risk.  The Council must continue to challenge itself on how every penny of the it’s money is 

spent.   

 
5.13 The key budget variances are outlined in the following table by Service Area,  with the pressures being 

highlighted in red, and the underspends in green:  

Directorate Service Area 
Variance 

£000 
Impact 

Place & Economy 

Westcombe Engineering Pressure 497  
Arrears in raw castings and increase 
in price of Raw Materials 

Peterborough Highways Savings (947) 

Significant Savings on Employee 
Costs, Street lighting and 
Highways inflation budgets, as well 
as additional income. 

Housing- pressure 784  
Additional Costs arising from Rough 
Sleepers. Additional costs such as 
repairs and Employee Costs 

Aragon Direct Services (1,000) 

Due to an ease in Financial pressures 
of Covid-19 resulting in a reduction 
of costs to the Council- this has been 
factored into the budget for 
2022/23. 

Energy Pricing (Energy from 
Waste) 

(1,592) 
Significant increase income as a 
result of the export price of 
Electricity produced by ERF.  

Development and Construction (239) 
Additional income and savings on 
Suppliers and Services 

People 
& Communities 

Adults (4,184) 

Changes in grant allocations 
impacted on income and spend, e.g. 
continuation of NHS Discharge 
Funding and annual uplift of Better 
Care fund. 

Inspection funds not required in 
2021/22. 

50



   
 

 
 

Directorate Service Area 
Variance 

£000 
Impact 

Saving on Staffing Costs due to 
difficulty recruiting 

Children’s (1,221) 
Increased number of looked after 
Children did not reach 
expected levels. 

Education (904) 

Direct Revenue Financing- Transfer 
from Revenue to Capital  
 
Savings on staffing costs due to 
unfilled vacancies 

Education – Home to 
school Transport 

441  

Due to growth, additional contract 
costs, the pressure of Primary School 
directed places and reduced 
parental contributions following the 
introduction of Public Services 
Vehicle Accessibility Regs. Pressure 
factored in 2022/23 budget 

Parking & Enforcement Services- 
loss of income 

1,034  

Pressure on parking and Fixed 
penalty notices, and 
partially included within the 2022/23 
Budget- due to the improving 
position. 

Culture and Leisure services 
Income Loss 

1,116  

Loss due to restrictions resulting 
from Covid-19 on Leisure facilities 
and Cultural events such as Key 
Theatre- a service plan for this area 
is un development. 

Additional costs associated with 
the Market move and City 
Centre management 

630  
One-off 2021/22 item as a result 
of the market move 

Customer & 
Digital Services 

ICT Savings (878) 

IT and Digital savings within current 
staff structures (due to vacancies 
pending restructure & capitalising 
staff costs) and in-year (early 
delivery) of savings on software, 
hardware and telephony contracts 

Resources 

Cross Keys Homes VAT Shelter (649) 

Favourable position driven by 
maintenance work carried out 
on properties and a varied 
expenditure profile from original 
budget. 

One-Off Pension   (1,337) 
Single year reduction to 20/21 
secondary contribution of 50% due 
to Vivacity ceasing Sept 2020. 

Serco- Early delivery of 
Business Support Saving & lower 
Contract indexation than 
budgeted 

(783) 

Review of Contract resulting in 
Budgetary savings such 
as inflation and also grant funding 
identified 

Housing Benefit Overpayment  (196) 
Higher level of overpayments 
recovered than previously forecast. 

51



   
 

 
 

Directorate Service Area 
Variance 

£000 
Impact 

Capital Financing Capital Financing (3,440) 

Reduced borrowing in 2020/21 
resulting in reduction in 
interest payments as well as savings 
due to a reduction in 
additional borrowing.  

Funding 

Business Rates Pool  (3,012) 

Benefit gained from Cambridgeshire 
and Peterborough Business Pool 
Rates for 2021/22- Factored into 
future years budgets. 

Sales Fees & Charges (SFC) Grant (1,098)  

The Government SFC compensation 
scheme was extended April – June 
2021, covering losses on Parking, 
Cultural and Leisure services. 

 
 

5.14 Further, more detailed information of final budget performance by directorate is outlined in Appendix 

A. 
 

Council Tax & NNDR Performance 
 

5.15 The performance on Business Rates and Council Tax has been encouraging, showing positive signs of 
recovery coming out of the pandemic. The performance within this area is detailed in Appendix D, with 

the following points providing an overview of the key Performance Indicators:  

 Council Tax Collection Rate- 97.97% against a target of 97.8% 

 Business Rates (NNDR) Collection Rate – 95.8% against a target of 95.86%  

 Reducing the £11.5m Business Rates uncollected debt at the end of 2020/21 by 83%, down to 

£1.9m. 

 Administering £33m of grants during 2021/22 to support local businesses.  

 Working age Local Council Tax Support claim levels are now below pre-pandemic as shown in the 
following chart: 

 

 
 

6.0 RESERVES 

6.1 The Council’s reserve balances are checked throughout the year as part of the Budgetary Control 
Reporting and budget setting process.  Table 3 summarises the balance for all reserves at the beginning 
and end of 2021/22, and the forecast position for future years. For more information see Appendix B.  

52



   
 

 
 

 Table 3: Reserves Summary  2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 

General Fund  6,000 7,300 7,300 7,300 

Risk and Volatil ity Reserves  22,521 19,001 14,329 14,329 

Innovation Delivery Fund and Departmental  
Reserves 

33,257 29,993 20,938 20,629 

Ring-Fenced Reserves 4,333 4,183 3,741 3,741 

Total Earmarked Reserves and General Fund 

Balances 
66,110 60,477 46,309 46,000 

 

6.2 The previous table outlines a net reduction of £5.6m reserves levels at the end of 2021/22, with the 
balance £60.4m. This decrease in reserves balances was expected, with most Local Authorities 
reporting increased reserve levels at the end of 2020/21 due to the accounting treatment of grant 
balances. The biggest driver of this change in position has been the movements in respect of NNDR 
section 31 grants. 
 

6.3 Overall the reserves position has improved, which has enabled the Council to redirect funds to specific 
risk reserves to mitigate the effect of non-delivery of savings plans in accordance with the strategy set 
out in the tactical budget for 2022/23 and the newly emerging risk of the rising cost from inflation.   

 
6.4 The following chart categorises the reserves balances outlining a balance of £20.3m (11.2% of the net 

revenue expenditure), which remains uncommitted and available to invest in transformation and 
change programmes to support the delivery of a Future Sustainable Council. This is a significant 
improvement against the position previously forecast at the beginning of the year and within the 
2022/23 tactical budget.  It demonstrates good progress towards addressing some of the concerns 
raised within the report CIPFA drafted on behalf DLUHC in summer 2021, and contributes to the actions 
identified as key workstreams for the delivery of financial sustainability outlined in the Improvement 
Plan: 

 
6.5 Key reserves movements are as follows: 

 
General Fund  
The General Fund balance is the working balance to manage in year risk.  This reserve has been 
increased from £6.0m to £7.3m, which represents 4% of the 2022/23 net revenue budget and is a step 
to improving the Council’s financial resilience.   
 

53



   
 

 
 

Risk and Volatility Reserves 

Budget Risk Reserve - as identified by the DS151 in the Tactical Budget and associated Robustness 
Statement a £2m Budget risk reserve has been set up in acknowledgement of the risks and issues 
contained in the Tactical Budget such as the savings proposals noted as very high and high risk in terms 
of saving delivery, the capacity to deliver the savings and the continued impact of the pandemic on 
people’s behaviours.  This reserve enabled an overall satisfactory conclusion  on the robustness of 
budgeted estimates as whilst the estimates are realistic and deliverable they are recognised as being 
very challenging.  If the reserve is unused in 2022/23 a review of future budget related risks will be 
undertaken and balances taken to the General Fund where appropriate. 

Inflation Risk Reserve- this £4.7m reserve has been established to mitigate the financial risk resulting 
from rising rates of inflation. In March 2022 inflation rates reached 7%, with the Bank of England (BoE) 
reporting it expects inflation rates to peak at over 10% by Q4 2022, the highest rate since 1982. This is 
shown in the following chart. As the economic landscape has been rapidly changing the creation of this 
reserve enables the Council to respond to any immediate financial risks as a result of rising rates whilst 
building sustainable plans to mitigate the impact in the medium to long term.   

 

Source BoE : https://www.bankofengland.co.uk/monetary-policy-report/2022/may-2022 

Tax Income Risk Reserve – this reserve reflects: 

 Business Rates (NNDR) section 31 grants: are grants (accounted for in general fund) received 
in 2021/22 to compensate the Council for the additional cost of providing the extended 
business rates retail and nursery relief.  The estimated balance on the Collection Fund at the 
end of 2021/22 was, for a second year running, exceptionally low as a result of the additional 
discounts applied to business rate payers, and this balance has carried forward as a deficit in 
to 2022/23.  These grants have been put into reserves and will be partially drawn down in 
2022/23 to smooth the budgetary effect of this deficit. A surplus will remain in this reserve due 
to an overall favourable position reported within the 2022/23 NNDR1 as a reflective of the 
position on the appeals and bad debt provision. This will remain in this reserve to provide risk 
mitigation for the Council, as a greater reliance is placed on Local Tax income to fund services, 
and the impact of the rising cost of living could adversely affect financial performance. 

 Tax Income Guarantee (TIG) scheme: The TIG scheme compensated Local Authorities for a 
proportion of lost Business Rates and Council Tax income in 2020/21. The Council received 
£2.3m and has planned to use £0.6m of this in 2022/23 to mitigate the impact of the deficit on 
the Council Tax collection fund.  

 

54

https://www.bankofengland.co.uk/monetary-policy-report/2022/may-2022


   
 

 
 

Innovation Fund and Departmental Reserves (available reserves) 

Innovation Fund Reserve – this newly created reserve is held to meet one off costs of service 
transformation and the delivery of savings within the Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS).  At the 
end of 2021/22 the reserve balance is £25.2m from the transfer of the £10.8m Covid-19 Funding 
reserve. Commitments against this reserve include the plans to deliver the savings and Financial 
Improvement Programme, and after taking account of these the uncommitted balance available for 
future investment which helps deliver future financial sustainability is £20.3m. 

Departmental Reserves - are amounts set aside by departments during the closure of the accounts 
and is following financial guidance to minimise risk exposure to the Council in the following financial 
year(s). This reserve balance has decreased from £5.4m to £4.8m through a decrease in the 
Peterborough City College reserve and a use of reserves for projects of specific grants were received 
covering multiple years. The reserves include balances in respect of : 

 Family Safeguarding Innovation Programme Pilot £1.3m 

 Integration Area Programme (Integrated communities) £0.6m 

 Controlled Migration Fund £0.4m 

 Peterborough City College £1.3m 

 Aragon Direct Services £0.5m 

Covid-19 Funding Reserve - at the end of 2020/21 this reserve was established with a balance of 
£12.8m to ensure that additional Covid-19 costs would be funded in 2021/22. As highlighted in the 
2021/22 BCR reports the scale of the additional demand and budgetary pressures, have been lower 
than originally anticipated. This meant that the Council was able to redirect the use of this reserve to 
establish a £2m Budget Risk Reserve, with the remaining balance of £10.8m being transferred into the 
Innovation Fund Reserve. This results in a nil balance to carry forward on this reserve.  

 
Ring-Fenced Reserves  

Public Health – movements on this reserve represent a net carry forward of unused Public Health 
grant, in relation to previous years underspends.  This reserve has increased from in £0.1m to £1.0m, 
as costs in 2021/22 were lower due to reduced demand and access to service due to the pandemic as 
well as recharging some staff cost to the contain outbreak management fund.  

Insurance Reserve- has recently undergone its three yearly actuarial review, from which the report 
outlined the fund would be adequate at £2m allowing a surplus of £1.5m to be released. This has been 
redirected to the support the establishment of the inflation reserve.  

 

 

7.0 FINAL CAPITAL OUTTURN 2021/22   

7.1 The final position of the Council's Capital Programme and the treasury activity for the financial year 

2021/22 follows. The Council’s treasury activity during 2021/22 has been compliant with the Treasury 
Management Strategy approved in March 2021 as part of the MTFS process.  This information 

compliments the Prudential Indicators performance report as set out in Appendix C.  

Capital Programme Outturn 2021/22 

7.2 The  capital programme which was agreed as part of the Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFS) in March 

2021 was £146.88m. This was finally revised to £81.52m in January 2022.    

 
7.3 The following chart and table show the movement in the capital programme  from the agreed capital 

programme in the 21/22 budget, to the final 21/22 outturn position   The Council agreed a capital 

programme of £146.88m in March 2021, however there were a number of schemes from the previous 

55

http://ccandpcc.sharepoint.com/:x:/r/sites/pccfinanceteam/_layouts/15/Doc.aspx?sourcedoc=%7B757129C7-BEEF-479A-BC9E-13A032872FBD%7D&file=Grant%20Register%202021.xlsx&nav=MTBfe0M5MkUyMjAxLTBDQUMtNDZDMi1CRUMwLUM3ODczMjc3NDA4Qn1fezAwMDAwMDAwLTAwMDEtMDAwMC0wNDAwLTAwMDAwMDAwMDAwMH0&action=default&mobileredirect=true


   
 

 
 

financial year that did not progress as quickly as planned therefore their budgets were reprofiled from 
the previously agreed 2020/21 capital programme by £18.06m.  Throughout the year the Corporate 

Management Team, alongside the additional focus of the S151, carried out detailed progress reviews 

on the capital programme following the reports from DLUHC.  This additional level of scrutiny led to a  
revised capital programme by 31 January 2022 of £81.5m. These budgets compare to the final 

expenditure for each directorate and how this investment is financed £79.28m.  

 
7.4 The major movements between the 21/22 revised budget and the final outturn are as follows:  

 Delays to the build of St John Henry Newman primary school and the refurbishment of 
Heltwate Special School £10.5m. 

 Capitalisation Direction no longer required – budget removed £20m. 

 Review and reprofiling of Towns Fund projects £15m. 

 Housing Schemes removed pending an updated Housing Strategy £9m. 

 Reprofiling of Highways Schemes £9m. 

 Aragon Fleet renewal reprofiled to future years £5m. 
 

 

Directorate 

21/22 Capital 
Programme 

Approved 
Budget 

20/21 
Slippage                

21/22 

Revised 
Budget   

 

21/22 
Outturn 

21/22    
Variance    

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Customer & Digital Services  2,500 1,528 4,028 2,017 (2,011) 

People & Communities  46,129 4,853 50,982 36,975 (14,007) 

Place & Economy 46,644 12,445 59,089 28,416 (30,673) 

Resources 38,111 (807) 37,304 3,347 (33,957) 

Invest to Save  13,500 40 13,540 8,521 (5,019) 

TOTAL 146,884 18,059 164,943 79,276 (85,667) 

Grants & Contributions  67,763 3,905 71,668 46,243 (25,425) 

Capital Receipts -   - - 

Borrowing 79,121 14,154 93,275 33,033 (60,242) 

TOTAL 146,884 18,059 164,943 79,276 (85,667) 

 

56



   
 

 
 

 

 

 

7.5 Invest to Save projects have been 
reduced over the next few years 

due to no planned expenditure.  

However, it should be noted that 
this does not affect the Council’s 

revenue capital financing budget as 

these projects are schemes that 
must cover the cost of borrowing 

and minimum revenue provision 

(MRP) from either income 
generation or from generated 

savings. 

 

 

 
7.6 Listed below are the major projects 

that combined form most of the total capital expenditure of £79.28m.  

 Schools (including the new Manor Drive and St John 
Henry Newman school) - £32.9m 

 Highways - £18.0m 

 Fletton Quays Hotel - £8.4m 
 Aragon Fleet replacement - £6.9m 

 

 
 

Funding the Capital Programme 

7.7 The Capital Programme is funded via grants and third-party contributions and borrowing funds from 
the external market.   Capital receipts generated from the sale of Council assets are used to repay debt 

as per the Council’s Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy.    

57



   
 

 
 

 
7.8 It is a statutory duty for the 

Council to decide and keep 

under review the level of 
borrowing it considers to be 

affordable.  The Council's 

approved Prudential Indicators 
(affordable, prudent, and 

sustainable limits) are outlined 

in the approved Treasury 
Management Strategy.  The 

Council borrowed to fund 

expenditure for new assets.   

 

7.9 The Council's total borrowing as 
at the end of the financial year is 

£447.6m, and the total interest 

paid on these loans for the year 
was £13.6m. The following chart 

summarises the overall treasury borrowing activity undertaken for the year with an overall  reduction 

in borrowing being achieved of £22.0m. The following table supplies a summary of the Council’s debt 
portfolio.  Further information is contained in the capital financing section of Appendix A.  

 

Borrowings 

Less than 
1yr 

1-2yrs 3-5yrs 6 -10yrs 10+yrs Total 

Ave. 

Interest 
Rate 

Ave. 

length 
of loan 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 % Years 

PWLB 7,128 13,000 6,015 13,505 325,439 365,087 3.5 27 

Local Authority 60,000 5,000 - - - 65,000 0.7 - 

Market Loans* 17,500 - - - - 17,500 4.5 24 

Total Borrowing 84,628 18,000 6,015 13,505 325,439 447,587 3.2 24 

% Of total Borrowing 19% 4% 1% 3% 73% 
  

Borrowing Limit (PI) 40% 40% 80% 80% 100% 

* The borrowing for under 12 months includes £17.5m of Lenders Option Borrowers Option (LOBO) loans.  Although 
the loans are due to mature in 22-34 years’ time, they are classed as loans repayable within the financial year due 

to LOBO’s having a call-in date every six months.   

7.10 Consideration has been made to rescheduling debt, however, there have been no suitable 

opportunities to do this.  The difference between the repayment rate and the rate of a new loan has 
not resulted in a net discount to the Council and no savings were to be made. 

 

Capital Receipts 

7.11 For 2021/22 financial year, and as per the Tactical Budget and the Council’s MRP policy, capital receipts 

generated from the sale of Council assets are used to repay debt and therefore form part of the MRP 

calculation.  However, whilst the tactical budget does include the expectation that £2.4m of capital 
receipts will be used to repay debt, as part of delivering financial sustainability for the Council and in 

order to strengthen the Council’s balance sheet, future capital receipts will be used to either repay the 

debt liability in addition to the calculated MRP or be used to fund capital schemes rather than adding 

58



   
 

 
 

to the debt burden of the Council.  This revised strategy is contained in the Improvement Plan and 
Capital Strategy. 

 

7.12 The following table shows the amounts of capital receipts built into the budget and the actual capital 
receipt received in 2021/22.  The total amount of capital receipts used to repay debt as per the MRP 

policy in 2021/22 was £2.73m.  

 

Budget Assets sold in year Other receipts Variance 

£000 £000 £000 £000 

2,433 2,497 233 (297) 

Investments and Loans to Third Parties 

7.13 The Council aims to achieve the most interest on treasury investments equal with the proper levels of 
security and liquidity.   

7.14 The Council has small surplus cash balances to cover the Council’s treasury function, however, this was 
kept under review to avoid incurring higher borrowing costs in the future when the Council may not 
be able to avoid new borrowing to finance capital expenditure and/or the refinancing of maturing debt. 

7.15 In the current economic climate, the Council considered it right to keep investments short-term to 
cover cash-flow fluctuations, and only invest with Barclays (the Council's banking provider) the Debt 
Management Office and a Money Market Fund.  However, this strategy is being reviewed as part of 
the Improvement Plan and the delivery of a sustainable budget in light of the inflationary increases 
being experienced and the resulting impact on interest rates.  An updated strategy will be taken for 
approval as part of the mid-year report. 

7.16 The Council has secured loans to third parties to advance the Council’s strategic interests. The loans 
are only made after the Council’s formal decision-making process has been followed.  As part of the 
formal decision to make the loans, the security for the loans is assessed as to their adequacy in case of 
the third party defaulting on repayment and individual loan agreements support the recovery of the 
capital loan in case of the default. 

7.17 The Council’s secured capital loans to third parties are set about in the following table. 

Third Party Details Loan Amount Status 

Fletton Quays Hotel Ltd Capital Loan £15.0m Due in 2022/23 

 
 

7.18 At the end of the financial year, the Council's external investments totalled £30.4m. The interest that 
has been received from all external investment activity including the Council’s loans to third parties, 
and the dividend payment from Eastern Shires Purchasing Organisation (ESPO) has yielded £1,020k. 

7.19 Further information on the Council’s capital financing arrangements can be found i n the Prudential 
Indicators performance found in Appendix C along with an update on treasury management activity 
and other financial performance indicators in Appendix A.  

 

8.0 Consultation  
 

8.1 Detailed reports have been discussed in Departmental Management Teams and this report with the 

Corporate Leadership Team.   

 

9.0 Anticipated Outcomes  
 

9.1 That the outturn position for 2021/22 is noted. 

59



   
 

 
 

 

10.0 Reasons for Recommendations 
 

10.1 This monitoring report forms part of the 2021/22 closure of accounts and decision-making framework 
culminating in the production of the Statement of Accounts and informs Cabinet and Audit 
Committee of the final position.   
 

10.2 Theme One Financial Sustainability of the Improvement Plan recognised the need to introduce a 
moratorium in November 2021 to ensure that only essential expenditure was incurred in the 
remaining months of the financial year.  This financial strategy was adopted in order to reduce the 
reliance on reserve balances to fund expenditure in 2021/22 so that reserves could be used to fund 
transformation, increase the Council’s financial resilience and strategically support the 2022/23 
Tactical Budget.  This outturn report provides evidence of the implementation of actions contained 
in the Improvement Plan and the positive first contribution towards a sustainable financial position.  

 

11.0 Alternative Options Considered 
 

11.1 None required.    

 

12.0 Implications 
 

12.1     Members must have regard to the advice of the Section 151 Officer.   

  

13.0 Appendices: 

 APPENDIX A – Directorate Revenue Outturn Report 

 APPENDIX B - Reserves Position  

 APPENDIX C - Treasury Management Strategy – Prudential Indicators 

 APPENDIX D - Performance Monitoring Report Prompt payment of invoices  

 

14.0 Background Documents: 

 Medium Term Financial Strategy Phase Two- 2021/22- 2023/24: Budget Cabinet 23 February 

2021, item 5 

 Budgetary Control Report – May 2021: 12 July 2021 Cabinet, item 9 

 Budget Monitoring Report Final Outturn Report – 2020/21: 21 June 2021Cabinet, item 10 
 Medium Term Financial Strategy Phase One- 2022/23 - 2024-25 - Budget Cabinet 25 October 

2021, item 5 
 Budgetary Control Report - August 2021 - Budget Cabinet 25 October 2021, item 6 

 Budgetary Control Report - September 2021 - Cabinet 15 November, item 8 

 Budgetary Control Report- October 2021 - Cabinet 29 November 2021, item 6 
 Council Tax Base 2022/23 and Collection Fund Declaration 2021/22 - Cabinet 10 January 2022, 

item 9 

 Budgetary Control Report - November 2021 - Cabinet 10 January 2022, item 10 

 CIFPA Financial Review Report - on behalf of DLUHC 
 Andrew Flockhart Governance Review- on behalf of DLUHC 

60

https://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s43410/5.%20MTFS%2021-22%20to%2023-24%20-%20Phase%202.pdf
https://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s43410/5.%20MTFS%2021-22%20to%2023-24%20-%20Phase%202.pdf
https://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s44572/9.%20Budget%20Control%20Report%20May%202021.pdf
https://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s44349/7.%20Budget%20Monitoring%20Report%20Final%20Outturn%202020-21.pdf
https://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s45276/5.%20Medium%20Term%20Financial%20Strategy%202022-23%20to%202024-25%20-%20Phase%20One.pdf
https://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s45276/5.%20Medium%20Term%20Financial%20Strategy%202022-23%20to%202024-25%20-%20Phase%20One.pdf
https://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s45247/6.%20Budget%20Control%20Report%20August%202021.pdf
https://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s45451/8.%20Report%20-%20BCR%20September%202021.pdf
https://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s45604/6.%20Report%20-%20Budget%20Control%20Report%20October%202021%20v3.pdf
https://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s45858/9.%20Report%20-%20Council%20Taxbase%202022-23%20and%20Collection%20Fund%20Declaration%202021-22.pdf
https://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s45858/9.%20Report%20-%20Council%20Taxbase%202022-23%20and%20Collection%20Fund%20Declaration%202021-22.pdf
https://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s45853/10.%20Report%20-%20Budget%20Control%20Report%20November%202021.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1030401/CIPFA_Report_Peterborough.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1030403/Governance_Review_Peterborough_City_Council.pdf


   
 

 
 

Appendix A- 2021/22 Directorate Revenue Outturn report 

 

 People & Communities - £3.1m Underspend  

  
  

Directorate Budget Group 
Budget 

 £k 

Actual 

Spend 
 £k 

 
Cont. to 

Reserve 
£k 

Variance 
 £k 

January’s 

Variance  
£k 

Movement 

 £k 
Overall Status 

People & Communities Director 1,107 1,078 0 (29) (88) 59 Underspend 

People & Communities Education 3,984 3,081 0 (904) (399) (505) Underspend 

People & Communities Adults – Commissioning 33,765 30,962 0 (2,802) (1,755) (1,047) Underspend 

People & Communities Adults - Operations 9,943 8,418 143 (1,382) (981) (401) Underspend 

People & Communities Children´s - Operations 12,130 11,993 0 (137) (186) 49 Underspend 

People & Communities Children´s Commissioning 18,101 17,017 0 (1,084) (874) (210) Underspend 

People & Communities Commissioning Team and Commercial Operations  542 822 0 279 307 (27) Overspend 

People & Communities Communities - City Centre Management 350 980 0 630 465 165 Overspend 

People & Communities Communities - Cohesion and Integration 513 462 0 (51) (56) 4 Underspend 

People & Communities Communities - Community Safety (835) 199 0 1,034 1,286 (252) Overspend 

People & Communities Communities - Think Communities 3,723 4,964 0 1,241 1,310 (69) Overspend 

People & Communities Communities-Regulatory Services 1,767 1,822 49 104 64 40 Overspend 
People & Communities Children's & Safeguarding (DSG) 6,042 6,648 0 607 495 112 Overspend 

People & Communities Commissioning and Commercial Operations (DSG) 11 10 0 (1) (1) 0 Underspend 

People & Communities Education (DSG) (6,053) (6,640) 0 (587) (475) (112) Underspend 

  Total People & Communities 85,091 81,816 192 (3,083) (889) (2,194) Underspend 

 

 

Directorate Variance Analysis 

Education 

£0.110m pressure as a result of lost income within the School Improvement service. This includes: 
 * £0.032m - School Improvement traded services as Schools have prioritising Covid-19 recovery. Income is predicted to return to pre-pandemic levels in 

financial year 2022-23. 
 * £0.078m - Attendance Fine Fixed Penalty Notices relates to where parents take children out of school during term time for holidays or other unauthorised 
absence. Due to historic experience of the level of notices being issued a budget was built into the Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS). Income is l ikely to 
return to pre-pandemic levels now that restrictions on foreign travel have been lifted and penalty notices are issued as a deterrent for parents for taking 

children out of school. 

61



   
 

 
 

Directorate Variance Analysis 

£0.640m favourable in relation to Schools Direct Revenue Financing (DRF). This is due to an increase in the value of schools funding being transferred from 

revenue into capital. School revenue spend which has been capitalised relates to new IT equipment, the All -Weather pitch at St John Fisher and building works 
/ alterations. 

£0.033m saving - using Special Education Needs Disabilities Grant funding to off-set existing costs 

£0.113m saving - Agreed new structure for Schools and Settings Finance Team       

£0.034m saving - Pre 98 Pension strain       

£0.287m saving re PFI - 0.223m saving re final PFI Insurance rebate. £0.129m saving re PFI Util ities. PFi Unitary charge pressure £0.065m 

£0.441m pressure Home to School Transport. This pressure stands for growth, added contract costs arising from the re-tendering of contracts, the pressure of 
Primary School directed places and reduced parental contributions following the introduction of Public Services Vehicle Acces sibility Regulations which means 
the Authority cannot charge for post 16 transport on non-compliant vehicles.       

0.101m saving - School Improvement and Monitoring grant being used to offset existing costs.       

0.101m saving re School Improvement including Governor Services trading surplus, employee savings, Attendance Service traded income. 

£0.108m saving - Shared Assistant Director School Improvement post not recruited to in current financial year, release of Service Director Pro ject funding 
following spend moratorium.       

Adults - 
Commissioning 

£0.854m favourable - the annual uplifts from the Better Care Fund for 2020/2021 and 2021/2022 has been released to support pressures in Adult Social Care 
from demographic and market conditions  

£0.530m favourable - release of the following on a one-year basis. Early Help and Transitions i nvestment due to delay in restructuring teams, Childrens Centres 
maintenance costs now not needed, inspections fund as a result of covid-19 some inspections have not taken place this financial year. 
£0.464m favourable further release of budgets around inspections & investments not needed in current financial year including Autism Strategy, pressures 
within 0-25 Service, recruitment investment in Transition Commissioning & Clare Lodge future options costs.      

£0.089m - part year savings on the closure of interim beds and estimated costs relating to 2020/21 not needed  

£0.379m saving - the extension of the Discharge to Assess (hospital discharges) from September 2021 to March 2022 has released the first four weeks of care 
package spend which is paid for by reclaiming through the CCG.  

£0.223m saving re Mental Health Section 75 agreement based on Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Foundation Trust (CPFT) undersp end predominantly due 
to staffing vacancies and difficulty in recruitment for social workers and Approved Mental Health Practitioners (AMHPs)  

£0.171m saving re Mental Health Section 75 agreement due to previous years added investment is no longer required.   

Adults - 
Operations 

£0.073m pressure due to more spend needed as a result of Covid-19, this includes: 
 * £0.039m for more Occupational Therapy capacity to deal with increased demand for services from hospital discharges and disabled facilities grant cases 
awaiting reviews  
 * £0.034m for extension of temporary resource in Transfer of Care (Hospital Discharge) Team to continue to support the health and social care system in 
discharging patients on time. 

£1.053m favourable on staffing costs, is mainly due to the difficulties in recruiting to vacancies due to availability of app ropriately qualified staff, new 
appointments being at a lower spinal column point or reduced hours in comparison to budget. 

62



   
 

 
 

Directorate Variance Analysis 

£0.182m favourable on Mental Capacity Act/Deprivation of Liberty Standards services for Best Interest Assessors and section 1 2 Doctors. Forecasting includes 
reduced requests and backlog of Court of Protection cases stil l affecting. 

£0.143m awaiting reserve adjustment for Learning Disability s75 underspend for 21/22. 

Children´s - 
Operations 

£0.097m pressure as a result of additional expenditure needed as a result of Covid-19. This includes: 
* £0.080m - Assessment and Family Safeguarding demand, more resources have been required due to the increasing numbers of assessments and  referrals.  
* £0.017m - Additional Youth Family worker to cover a staff member having to shield      

£0.084m saving on Cherry Lodge due to reduced Outreach support, staffing vacancy slippage and increased contributions for sha red care. 

£0.129m saving released under Targeted Youth Services - £0.032m vacancy savings as posts not being recruited to until  April  2022, £0.024m carry forward for 
Prince Trust released, £0.040m for relief budget travel, other vacancy slippage and financial aid offered up as part of spend ing moratorium 

Children´s 
Commissioning 

£1.084m favourable including: 
 *£1.083m - Children’s  Social Care Placements- increased numbers of Looked After Children following covid-19 lockdown have not materialised to the level 

expected although this has been offset by increased complexity of need and market demands  
 *£0.050m saving Children's Centres contribution from Tackling Troubled Families Grant 
 *£0.082m Saving on spot purchased specialist services for children 
 *£0.078m saving commissioning of Derby House 
 *£0.036m pressure re Short Breaks Commissioning with Circles Network 
 *£0.221m pressure relating to Children with Disabilities - Additional Short Breaks and Homecare for periods out of School. 

Commissioning 
Team and 

Commercial 
Operations 

£0.447m pressure in relation to Clare Lodge, this is based on average occupancy of between 7 and 8 young people until  March 22. The £0.447m ov erspend is: 

* A shortfall  of income of £0.538m based on reduced average occupancy until  March 22. 

* An overspend on employee expenditure of £0.256m. A pressure of £0.947m in relation to Agency staffing is offset by Vacancy savings of £0.691m 

* An underspend of £0.347m on non-staffing expenditure budgets        

Communities - 
City Centre 

Management 

£0.630m pressure includes: £0.112m loss of income at the Market due to non-essential traders having not yet reopened stalls following the Lockdown 3.0 

restrictions, £0.423m pressure re costs of Market Relocation, £0.080m pressure loss of Street Trader income and the Governmen t extension to the lower 
charge rate in relation to outdoor seating and £0.015m as a result of the 2021 Great Eastern Run being cancelled.     

Communities - 

Community 
Safety 

£1.034m pressure includes 

£0.706m pressure due to loss of Parking Income due to the Pandemic offset by reduced spend of £0.179m. It is expected that Parking Income for financial year 
2022/23 will  be in l ine with budgeted income. 

£0.443m pressure due to reduction in Fixed Penalty Notices issued by the Parking Enforcement team off -set by reduced spend £0.074m. 

£0.474m pressure due to reduction in Fixed penalty Notices issued by the Environmental Enforcement Team off -set by grant contributions of £0.093m and 

reduced spend £0.137m.      

63



   
 

 
 

Directorate Variance Analysis 

Communities-
Regulatory 

Services 

£0.259m pressure within the Coroners service as a result of unusually complicated and high-profile cases (£0.039m), Covid-19 (£0.078m) and Business as Usual 
(£0.143m). This is due to the requirement to adhere to strict Covid-19 guideline about PPE (Personal Protective Equipment) and a backlog of cases, therefore 

there is a need to appoint more area coroners and assistant coroners. There is also a need for more ICT, due to a shortage of  Covid-19 secure premises for 
remote inquests.        

Communities - 

Think 
Communities 

£1.541m pressure within the Recreation and Culture services. This includes: 

* £0.816m pressure resulting from lost income covering the period April  to June 2021. This is due to Covid -19 restrictions in relation to access to Leisure 
Facil ities such as swimming and gyms and also Cultural events such as the Key Theatre, Flag Fen, and Exhibitions. Recovery plans are in place for Recreation 
and Culture but will  not mitigate losses already incurred. 

* £0.300m - Further loss of Leisure income. 

* £0.400m - Additional running costs of City Culture.        

£0.274m saving within Community Capacity of which £0.247m saving because Think Communities MTFS investment for 2021/22 is not  needed this financial 
year as all  costs can be charged to the Integrated Area Programme grant       

64



   
 

 
 

Directorate Variance Analysis 

Children 0-5 Health Visitors 
£0.125m saving - Section 75 agreement with Cambridgeshire and Peterborough NHS Foundation Trust (CPFT) underspent as a result of 
vacancies.       

Children 5-19 Health 
Programmes 

£0.115m saving - Contribution to Family Safeguarding not needed until  financial year 2022/23 as being covered by reserve funds for family 

safeguarding. 
£0.017m pressure - A one year only contribution is needed to the cost of the CHUMS (Mental Health and Emotional Wellbeing Service) 
contract which offers support to young people with mental health difficulties, as the contract was re-procured, and lead commissioners 
changed from PCC to CCG from July 2020.      

Sexual Health 

£0.010m pressure additional Icash contract cost 

£0.030m saving out of area genitourinary medicine (GUM) based on Q1 to Q3 activity  
£0.019m saving Emergency Contraception (EHC) based on Q1 to Q3 activity 
£0.020m saving Long Acting Reversable Contraception (LARC) based on Q1 to Q3 activity 
£0.027m underspend re pre-exposure prophylaxis (PreP) due to reduced demand"       

Smoking and Tobacco £0.054m saving payments to GP's / Pharmacies for Smoking cessation due to reduced activity  

Miscellaneous Public Health 
Services 

£0.088m saving Adults Weight Management & Obesity budget 
£0.078m staff saving. Reduced cross charge from CCC and charging Public Health staffing costs to other grants.  
£0.054m saving GP Health checks  based on Q1 to Q3 activity. 

£0.282m saving charging Public Health core salary costs to Contain Outbreak Management Fund (COMF) grant.   

 Public Health - £0.003m underspend 

         

Directorate Budget Group 
Budget 

 £k 

Actual 
Spend 

 £k 

Cont. to 
Reserve 

 £k 

Variance 
 £k 

January’s 
Variance  

£k 

Movement 
 £k 

Overall 
Status 

Public Health Children 0-5 Health Visitors 3,974 3,850 0 (124) 1 (125) Underspend 

Public Health Children 5-19 Health Programmes 987 889 0 (98) (98) (0) Underspend 

Public Health Sexual Health 2,052 1,966 0 (86) (59) (27) Underspend 

Public Health Substance Misuse 2,308 2,308 0 0 0 0 On Budget  

Public Health Smoking and Tobacco 286 201 0 (85) (69) (16) Underspend 

Public Health Miscellaneous Public Health Services  1,458 941 0 (517) (216) (301) Underspend 

Public Health Public Health Grant (11,252) (11,253) 907 906 441 465 
Contribution 

to Reserve 

  Total Public Health (188) (1,097) 907 (3) 0 (3) Underspend  

65



   
 

 
 

 

 

 Governance - £0.2m Underspend 

    
 

    

Directorate Budget Group 
Budget 

 £k 
Actual Spend 

 £k 

 
Cont. to 

Reserve £k 

Variance 
 £k 

January’s 
Variance  

£k 

Movement 
 £k 

Overall Status 

Governance Director of Governance 130 103 0 (27) (21) (6) Underspend 

Governance Legal Services  1,845 1,826 0 (19) (21) 2 Underspend 

Governance Constitutional Services 2,036 1,888 0 (148) (127) (21) Underspend 

Governance Information Governance 182 187 0 5 19 (14) Overspend 

  Total Governance 4,192 4,004 0 (188) (149) (39) Underspend 

 

Directorate Variance Analysis 

Constitutional Services 

£0.148m Favourable - £0.082m saving in Members Services of which £0.054m is a saving in members allowances due to some 
members carrying out more than one role and only able to claim one Special Responsibility Allowance. Remaining savings due to  
reduced travel costs, reduced supplies and services including postage, printing, photocopying, and IT costs. 

£0.095m saving in salaries due to two vacancies. £0.029m other misc. Pressures.      

  

66



   
 

 
 

 Resources - £4m Underspend  

         

Directorate Budget Group 
Budget 

 £k 
Actual Spend 

 £k 
Cont. to 

Reserve £k 
Variance 

 £k 

January’s 
Variance  

£k 

Movement 
 £k 

Overall Status 

Resources Director's Office 331 385 0 54 59 (5) Overspend 

Resources Financial Services 4,550 3,707 416 (428) (325) (103) Underspend 

Resources Corporate Items 8,521 6,061 2 (2,458) (1,830) (628) Underspend 

Resources Peterborough Serco Strategic Partnership 8,073 7,094 0 (979) (932) (47) Underspend 

Resources Corporate Property 2,325 2,075 0 (250) 17 (267) Underspend 

Resources Energy 478 874 0 396 130 266 Overspend 

Resources Cemeteries, Cremation & Registrars (1,482) (1,818) 0 (336) (149) (187) Underspend 

  Total Resources 22,797 18,378 418 (4,001) (3,030) (971) Underspend 

 

Directorate Variance Analysis 

Financial Services 

£0.228m Favourable - A final underspend is being reported against the Financial Services salary budgets.  £0.051m of this underspend is related to a 
secondment of an Internal Audit member of staff to the Community Hub during the financial year.  The salary costs were Covid -19 grant funded.  £140k 

savings are within Strategic Finance following a review of the interim management arrangements during the financial year, and £0.026m savings  through 
the COMF Grant contribution.       

£0.200m Favourable - Other savings found across the service area, including £0.025m saving in salary related costs generated from the operation of the 
corporate car lease salary sacrifice scheme, £0.034m from the Risk Management budget underspend and £0.038m of savings within  the Insurance Premium 
budget.  In addition, £0.084m favourable variance is reflected within Finance due to final posting of unallocated income.    

Corporate Items 

£1.337m Favourable - The pension actuary completed the cessation assessment for Peterborough Culture and Leisure Trust (Vivacity) following their 

admission ceasing on 30/09/2020.  This has resulted in the Council receiving a single year reduction to their secondary contributions f or the year 2021/22 to 
the value of 50% of the Vivacity surplus detailed in the assessment report.  This variance is the result of  the Funding and Management Agreement with 
Vivacity and the risk agreement for pension contributions. 

£0.218m Favourable - Following a review of the Compensatory Added Years and Unfunded Pension contributions, there is a saving against the corporate 
premature retirement budget.  This saving is partially repeatable in future years dependant on the Council 's in -year pension strain funding requirements, 

and forms part of the 2022/23 MTFS savings.  In addition, in-year costs for 21/22 are lower than budgeted.     
  

£0.231m Favourable - This variance is a result of the Containment Outbreak Fund (COMF) grant contribution towards the corporate overhead expenditure 
during 21/22. 

67



   
 

 
 

Directorate Variance Analysis 

£0.649m Favourable - This variance is a result of the Value Added Tax (VAT) shelter income received from Cross Keys Homes (CKH). This favourable position 
has been driven by maintenance work CKH has carried out on its properties, and the expenditure profile has varied from origin al budgeted. 

Peterborough 
Serco Strategic 
Partnership 

£0.100m Favourable - Final year of growth income received as part of the Peterborough Serco Strategic Partnership contract which has not been budg eted.  
Not repeatable in future years.       

£0.271m Favourable - Business Support contract credits (freezing core vacancies where possible until  transformation work takes place), offset by 
centralised project costs unable to be recharged directly to projects.       

£0.352m Favourable - Following a review of the PSSP contract budget including inflationary elements (£230k) along with grant funding found (£122k), a 
total underspend in the current year of £352k was found. This will  be partly ongoing and a saving has been factored into the proposed 2022/23 Medium 

Term Financial Strategy (MTFS).       

£0.231m Favourable - Due to a one-off piece of work with historic Housing Benefit payments, the Council found a higher level of overpayments than 
previously forecast which have already been recovered and as a result has received a net £210k overpayment income above budget for this financial year. 

£0.35m Pressure - Court cost income collected is lower than budgeted. Due to lack of recovery activity which was restricted over the pandemic, the income 

was adversely affected in 2020/21. Although the current year pressure has improved on last financial year, it is in l ine with outturn in 2019/20 suggesting an 
ongoing pressure. There is no corresponding saving in administration costs.       

Energy 

£0.396m Pressure - On 12 November administrators were appointed to ECSP1 and on the same day the Council bought the assets of ECSP1 from the 
administrators.  The adverse position to the budget for this project has arisen from the legal and professional costs of the insolvency.  The solar income 
from the corporate estate was lower than forecast as several installations have been offline during the year due to maintenance and meter issues and 

lower solar irradiation levels than forecast especially in the last quarter of the year.  A cash limit saving target for all  the Council 's energy projects was not 
met as the income profile of the energy projects has changed since it was implemented 

Corporate 
Property 

£0.0.083m Favourable - NPS Peterborough Ltd is a 50/50 joint venture company owned by the Council and the Norse Group (a wholly owned subsidiary of 

Norfolk County Council).  This favourable variance is a result of the profit share being higher than budgeted.  This variance is unlikely to continue as savings 
have been built into the MTFS for the NPS contract. 

£0.073m Pressure - A debtor invoice write off exercise has meant £0.073m has been recoded to Corporate Property from the Bad Debt Provision, creating a 
pressure against the budget in this financial year.       

£0.161m Favourable - Savings on Office Accommodation costs including Waste Collection, Stationery, Security and Cleaning, along with further savings 
found in Supplies and Services across the service area.         

£0.079m Favourable - Other overall  underspends within the service mainly due to Business rates budgets including credits for prior year charges, service 
charge income being higher than budgeted, partially offset with costs for Interim Management.       

Cemeteries, 
Cremation & 

Registrars 

£0.257k Favourable - Additional income above budget from cremations, internment fees and rights of burial charges, offset by reduction in Registration 
income (Covid-19 related).       

£0.081k Favourable - Other savings across the service including salaries and other supplies and services.       

  

68



   
 

 
 

 Place & Economy - £3.1m Underspend   
         

Directorate Budget Group 
Budget 

 £k 
Actual Spend 

 £k 

 
Cont. to 

Reserve £k 

Variance 
 £k 

January’s 
Variance  

£k 

Movement 
 £k 

Overall Status 

Place & Economy Development and Construction (29) (267) 0 (239) (160) (79) Underspend 
Place & Economy Director Place & Economy 151 125 0 (26) (9) (17) Underspend 

Place & Economy Peterborough Highway Services  4,293 3,346 0 (947) (799) (148) Underspend 

Place & Economy Sustainable Growth Strategy 1,560 1,190 39 (331) (204) (127) Underspend 

Place & Economy Waste, Cleansing and Open Spaces  14,925 11,581 500 (2,844) (2,118) (726) Underspend 

Place & Economy Westcombe Engineering 49 546 0 497 455 42 Overspend 

Place & Economy Director of Housing 2,275 3,059 0 784 858 (74) Overspend 

Place & Economy Growth & Regeneration 504 466 0 (38) 5 (44) Underspend 

  Total Place & Economy 23,729 20,046 539 (3,144) (1,971) (1,172) Underspend 

 

Directorate Variance Analysis 

Development and 

Construction 

£0.239m Favourable - This has arisen through more income (Planning fees, Planning Performance Agreement income, S106 Admin fees, Building Control 
income) and savings on supplies & services. Partly offset by added staff costs, consultant fees and reduction in recha rges to shared services   

Peterborough 
Highway Services 

£0.302m Favourable - Employee cost savings through Highway Services. Further savings due to a delay in recruitment following a restructure.    

£0.289m Favourable - Various cost savings and added income Network Management (Traffic signal maintenance, bridge maintenance, New Roads Streets 
Work Act, etc)       

£0.012m Pressure - Highways Schemes - Cost of more vehicles August 21 to Jan 22 due to Covid-19. Also reduced Street Naming income. Pressure reduced 

by other savings and green claims        

£0.019m Favourable - Additional Highway Development Sec38 Income and supplies & services savings        

£0.349m Favourable - Savings on street l ighting and highway contractor inflation budgets, and more fee income from other Local authorities for PCC project 
work       

Sustainable Growth 
Strategy 

£0.331m Favourable - Various savings across the service including employee and consultancy costs and supplies & services. Also, more income from 
commuted sums, staff recharges to schemes, S106 income and contributions from Cambridgeshire County Council towards plan works   
  

Waste, Cleansing 
and Open Spaces 

£1.592m Favourable - Energy Recovery Facil ity (ERF) Electricity Income - Continued significant Increase in wholesale export price of electricity produced by 
the ERF (the Council 's Energy from Waste Plant used by Viridor).  A pressure of £0.5m was reflected in the Council 's budget f or 2021/22 due to reduction in 
energy prices; however, the energy market overall  is showing faster signs of recovery than predicted and the Council is able to achieve an improvement in 

the sale price.  Increased income has been factored into the budget proposals for 2022/23        

69



   
 

 
 

Directorate Variance Analysis 

£0.035m Pressure - Additional cost at Household Recycling Centre due to Covid-19, such as staffing, traffic management, cleansing and signage.   

£0.063m Pressure - Vehicle hire and other staffing costs on waste collection rounds due to Covid-19       

£1.000m Favourable - Aragon Direct Services. As the financial pressures from Covid-19 reduced, and the replacement vehicle programme got underway, the 

financial position of Aragon Direct Services improved, and the increase in costs to the Council that were set out in the budget were lower than anticipated.
       

£0.314m Favourable - Materials Recycling Facil ity - Significant increase in cardboard and paper recycling prices which continued through the whole year  

£0.329m Pressure - Brown Bin Service - Due to national driver shortages the annual garden waste bin collection service which started in August 2021 was 
suspended. Customers to the service received a refund from the council, for the 11 months of service which has not been provi ded. The new annual service 
is set to resume from May 2022. This means a loss of income of £741k in the current financial year, but there is a saving of £412k due to the non -delivery of 
the service.       

£0.090m Favourable - Insurance rebate Energy for Waste plant       

£0.126m Favourable - Waste treatment costs lower than expected in quarter 4 of 21/22       

£0.160m Favourable - Savings from delayed spring clean across the city previously planned for Feb 22, income from Waste Client Team supplying serv ice to 

Peterborough Environment City Trust (PECT), no charge for garden waste administration, reduced repair and maintenance costs across open spaces and 
play areas, savings on util ity costs and reduced business rates. Partially offset by other misc. pressures including Bulky Wa ste service, added city centre 
cleansing and fly tipping clearance costs         

Westcombe 
Engineering 

£0.328m Pressure - Loss of income - Significant arrears in raw casting supply due to Covid-19 and Brexit. This lack of castings did not allow Westcombe 
Engineering to satisfy key customer requirements.  Also, raw material prices continue to rise.       

£0.169m Pressure - £0.038m cost of backfil l ing a post seconded to the Covid-19 Hub, £0.047m cost of machine repairs, £0.054m warranty claim and 

£0.030m other staff costs        

Director of Housing 

£0.655m Pressure - Housing Services - other costs arising from housing rough sleepers in hotels and B&B's. The pressure is made up of £0.855m 
expenditure, which is being partially offset by £0.200m of Rough Sleeper initiative grant income.      

£0.267m Favourable - Additional Homelessness Prevention Grant       

£0.166m Pressure - Unachievable savings plan relating to income associated with Temporary Accommodation. The baseline budget requirement has been 

re-assessed and this element of saving has not been realised.       

£0.085m Favourable - Net savings on temporary accommodation schemes - Bushfield Court will  not now be leased for temporary accommodation, and a 
scheme at Walton Road has been delayed until  2022/23. The rent PCC would have paid for these properties is higher than the rental income that would be 

received, so these changes result in a saving.  This saving has been offset by added rent costs at Redpoll Place, added costs from Cross Keys Homes relating 
to Hostel under occupation charges from 2020/21 and costs of surveying properties at Wittering to consider whether they were suitable for temporary 
accommodation.       

£0.111m Favourable - relating to employee costs for Housing Needs, however vacancy savings are offset by temporary staff costs     

£0.108m Pressure - Increased repair and maintenance costs of Norwood and Oxney Traveller sites        

70



   
 

 
 

Directorate Variance Analysis 

£0.068m Pressure - Other misc. pressures, mostly landlord incentive payments        

£0.046m Favourable - Employee costs Housing Enforcement Team       

£0.076m Favourable - Housing Enforcement License income and supplies & services savings        

£0.137m Favourable - Employee costs Selective Licensing Team. 2 full  time vacant posts and another saving due to a full -time team member being 
seconded to another area for most of 21/22.       

£0.509m Pressure - Selective Licensing Scheme. The Selective Licensing Scheme ended October 2021 and there has been a delay in setting up the new 
scheme. A proposed replacement scheme has recently been consulted upon. It will  then be reviewed by central Govt and requires  their approval, and it is 
unclear how long this process will  take. An estimate has been made on how this will  affect future years budgets     

 

 

 

  

71



   
 

 
 

 Business Improvement - £0.0m Underspend 

         

Directorate Budget Group 
Budget 

 £k 

Actual 
Spend 

 £k 

 
Cont. to 

Reserve £k 

Variance 
 £k 

January’s 
Variance  

£k 

Movement 
 £k 

Overall Status 

Business 

Improvement Programme Management Office 731 697 0 (34) (29) (4) Underspend 

Business 
Improvement 

Director Business Improvement & 
Development 318 318 0 (0) 0 (0) On Budget  

  Total Business Improvement 1,050  1,016 0 (34) (29) (4) Underspend 

 

Directorate Overview 

The BID Directorate is reporting a small favourable variance within the service of £0.034m         

 

 

 Chief Executives - £0.2m Underspend  

         

Directorate Budget Group 
Budget 

 £k 

Actual 
Spend 

 £k 

Cont. to 
Reserve £k 

Variance 
 £k 

January’s 
Variance  

£k 

Movement 
 £k 

Overall Status 

Chief Executives Chief Executive 161 221 0 60 42 19 Overspend 

Chief Executives HR 1,064 830 0 (224) (142) (92) Underspend 

  Total 1,225 1,051 0 (173) (100) (73) Underspend 

Directorate Overview 

The Chief Executive Directorate is reporting a favourable final position against budget of £0.173m.      

 

Directorate Analysis 

HR 

£0.111m Favourable - Savings within salary budgets due to vacancies being held, maternity savings and grant/other funding, along with a release of a prior year 
redundancy provision.       

£0.062m Favourable - An underspend was found through reduced expenditure within Workforce Development and Corporate training budgets during the year. 

 
£0.059m Favourable - Additional income was secured through Practice Learning and additional savings within supplies and services following the spending 

moratorium implementation, along with Apprenticeship Levy income.    

72



   
 

 
 

 Customer & Digital Services - £1m Underspend  

         

Directorate Budget Group 
Budget 

 £k 

Actual Spend 
 £k 

Cont. to 
Reserve £k 

Variance 

 £k 

January’s 
Variance  

£k 

Movement 

 £k 

Overall 

Status 

Customer & Digital Services IT & Digital Services 7,045 3,167 0 (878) (758) (120) Underspend 

Customer & Digital Services Marketing & Communications  458 397 0 (61) 37 (98) Underspend 

Customer & Digital Services Resil ience & Health & Safety 267 227 0 (40) 3 (43) Underspend 

Customer & Digital Services 
Director of Customer & Digital 
Services 87 86 0 (1) 0 (1) Underspend 

  
Total Customer & Digital 
Services 7,857 6,877 0 (980) (718) (262) Underspend 

 

Directorate Overview 

The Customer & Digital Directorate is reporting a final overall favourable variance of £0.980m against budget. The main variances are within IT & Digital service area, primarily 
through identification of additional external income above budget, savings within current staffing structure and recharges, a nd continued rationalisation of the IT budget 
following exit from the Serco contract. 

Directorate Variance Analysis 

IT & Digital Services 

 

£0.197m Favourable - Additional income generated through external sources including Service Level Agreements with partner organisations and 
East of England Broadband Network (E2BN). This is l ikely to be an ongoing income stream and has been included in the 2022/23 MTFS budget 

process. 

£0.285m Favourable - Staffing budgets are reporting an underspend due to more salary capitalisation, vacant posts in year and grant funding being 
identified.  The restructure of the service is in progress.         

£0.101m Favourable - continued rationalisation of the IT revenue budget has meant that the remaining contingency held, following the exit from 

the Serco contract, was not needed in this financial year.  It has been reviewed as part of the 22/23 budget proposals.     

£0.228m Favourable - In-year savings within Software and Hardware, Telephony and Microsoft contracts. Part of the saving relates to repeatable 
savings which have been built into the 22/23 MTFS.       

£0.066m Favourable - Other minor variances within the service area.       

73



   
 

 
 

Capital financing - £3.3m Underspend 

 

Directorate Budget Group 
Budget 

 £k 
Actual Spend 

 £k 

Cont. to 

Reserve £k 
Variance 

 £k 

January’s 

Variance  
£k 

Movement 
 £k 

Overall 
Status 

Resources Capital Financing 30,798 27,357 0 (3,340) (2,687) (753) Underspend 

  Total Capital Financing 30,798 27,357 0 (3,340) (2,687) (753) Underspend 

 

Capital Financing Overview 

 Tight management of the Council 's cash flow has led to savings being realised by extending the time before borrowing was undertaken, reducing the amounts of 

borrowing taken, and at the lower, shorter length interest rates.  
 All borrowing undertaken has been used to fund capital expenditure or refinance maturing loans.  

 The Council 's cash flow has benefitted from the additional funds provided by government in relation to funding the Covid-19 activity and grants provided to bus inesses 

to support them through the pandemic.  
 The Council 's capital programme has not progressed in the timescales originally planned in the MTFS.  

 The benefits realised from these factors led to savings in year of £2.7m. These 2021/22 factors built on the 2020/21 position where less borrowing was undertaken for 

the capital programme in 2020/21 (£24.3m compared to an expected MTFS figure of £50.5m) than budgeted for in the MTFS resulti ng in less budget being required to 
fund existing borrowing.  

 The minimum revenue provision (MRP) calculation included in this position has taken into account the lower completion rates of schemes from the 2020/21 capital 

programme (spend of £55m compared to the budget of £83m) and resulted in a lower provision of £1.0m compar ed to the MTFS budget.   

 

 

 

 

74



   
 

 
 

  

Capital Receipts Overview 

 As per the MTFS policy Capital Receipts will  be used to repay debt and forms part of the 

calculation of reducing the overall  debt through MRP.  If capital receipts are not received, 
the debt will  need to be repaid via revenue resources. 

 The Council found over £4.5m of asset sales in order to achieve the MTFS budget of £2.4m, 

however this was paused to ensure that the asset sales are 'at the right price' and will  not 
be rushed into 'fire sales' and is undergoing further examination for potential added asset 
sales following the results of the both DLUHC reviews which recommend that asset sales 

are used to stabilise the Council 's financial position. The Council did still  realise £2.7m of 
capital receipts, £0.3m above that estimated in the MTFS 

 

 

75



   
 

 
 

Appendix B: Council Reserves Position 

  2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

Summary of Reserves 

Balance 
C/Fwd. 

1.4.21 

£000 

Contribution 
from Reserve  

£000 

Contribution 
to Reserve   

£000 

Movement 
between 
Reserves 

£000 

 Balance 
at 

31.03.22 
£000 

Estimated 
Balance at 

31.03.23 
£000 

Estimated 
Balance at 

31.03.24 
£000 

Estimated 
Balance at 

31.03.25 
£000 

General Fund Balance  6,000   -     1,300   -     7,300   7,300   7,300   7,300  

  
        

Innovation Fund, Risk & Volatility, and 
Departmental Reserves 

        

Innovation Fund Reserve  15,035  (7,14)   -     10,841   25,162   20,606   20,297   20,297  

Grant Equalisation Reserve  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -    

Departmental Reserve  5,380  (1,232)   682   -     4,831   332   332   332  

Tax Income Risk Reserve  22,521  (20,205)  9,991 
 

 12,307   7,636   7,636   7,636  

COVID-19 Funding Reserve  12,841   -     -    (12,841)   -     -     -     -    

Inflation Risk Reserve  -     -     3,243   1,450   4,693   4,693   4,693   4,693  

Budget Risk Reserve 
   

 2,000   2,000   2,000   2,000   2,000  

   55,778  (22,151)   13,917   1,450   48,994  35,267 34,958 34,958 

Ring-Fenced Reserves 
        

Insurance Reserve  3,315  (280)   416  (1,450)   2,000   2,000   2,000   2,000  

Schools Capital Expenditure Reserve  658  (175)   386   -     868   868   868   868  

Parish Council Burial Ground Reserve  57  (3)   2   -     56   56   56   56  

Hackney Carriage Reserve  173   -     49   -     221   221   221   221  

Lease Consolidation Reserve  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -    

Public Health Reserve  131   -     907   -     1,037   596   596   596  

   4,333  (458)   1,759  (1,450)   4,183   3,741   3,741   3,741  

  
        

Total Usable and Ring-Fenced Reserves and 
General Fund Balance 

 66,110  (22,609)   16,976   -    60,477 46,309 46,000 46,000 

 

76



 

 
 

Appendix C - Treasury Management Strategy Prudential Indicators Outturn 2021/22 

The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities supplies a framework for local authority capital 
finance to ensure that: 

(a) capital expenditure plans are affordable. 
(b) all external borrowing and other long-term liabilities are within prudent and sustainable levels. 
(c) treasury management decisions are taken following professional good practice.  

In taking decisions in relation to (a) and (c) above, the local authority is accountable by supplying a clear and 
transparent framework. 

The Code requires the Council to set a range of Prudential Indicators for the forthcoming financial year and 
at least the following two financial years.  During the financial year to date the Council has worked within the 
treasury limits and Prudential Indicators set out in the Council’s Annual Treasury Management Strategy.   

The outturn for the Prudential Indicators for the financial year are detailed below.  The indicators include the 
Invest to Save scheme.  The costs of borrowing associated with these schemes will be offset by the income 
or savings generated by these projects. 

The 2021/22 Prudential Indicators are shown below and the Council’s performance to date against them.  All 
performance is within the limits. 

 
1. Indicator 1: Capital Expenditure  

This indicator is the capital expenditure for the year based on the Capital Programme.  
 

Capital Expenditure  
  

2021/22 2021/22 

Indicator 
£m 

Actual  
£m 

Capital Expenditure 133.4 70.8 
Invest to Save 13.5 8.5 

Total 146.9 79.3 
  

The actual capital programme expenditure outturn is £79.3m which is lower than the MTFS indicator 
due to a number of projects across all directorates either being reprofiled to reflect the spending more 
accurately over future years or removed as part of an enhanced scrutiny process linked to achieving 
more savings in 2021/22 as well as future years. This process was carried out alongside the development 
of the 2022/23 MTFS to aid the future financial sustainability of the Council. 

Invest to Save projects have been reduced over the next few years due to no planned expenditure.  
However, this does not affect the Council’s capital financing budget as this is for schemes that must 
cover the cost of borrowing and minimum revenue provision (MRP) from either income generation or 
from generated savings. 

 
2. Indicator 2: Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 

The CFR measures the Council’s underlying need to borrow money in the long term for capital purposes.  
Any capital expenditure which has not at once been paid for will increase the CFR. 
 

Capital Financing Requirement 
2021/22 2021/22 

Indicator 
£m 

Actual 
£m 

CFR b/fwd. 622.0 598.8 

Underlying Need to Borrow 46.7 6.8 

Underlying Need to Borrow - Invest to Save 13.5 8.5 

Total CFR C/fwd. 682.2 614.1 

77



 

 
 

 
3. Indicator 3: Actuals and Estimates of the Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Budget 

The Council must estimate the proportion of the revenue budget, which is taken up in financing capital 
expenditure i.e., the net interest cost and to make provision to repay debt.   The actual performance of 
14.4% is reflected in the explanatory text for capital financing as contained in the Appendix A.  
 

Ratio of net financing costs to net revenue 
stream 

2021/22 2021/22 

Indicator Actual  

Total Ratio 15.2% 14.4% 

 
4. Indicator 4: Proportion of Gross Debt to the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 

This indicator shows the proportion of the Council’s external borrowings (Gross Debt) against the CFR  to 
ensure that borrowing levels are prudent over the medium term and only for a capital purpose.  The 
Council should ensure that its gross external borrowing does not, except in the short term, exceed the 
total of the capital financing requirement in the preceding year (2020/21) plus the estimates of any other 
capital financing requirement for the current (2021/22) and next two financial years.  This means that 
the Council is not borrowing to support revenue expenditure.   
 

Proportion of Gross Debt to the CFR 
2021/22 2021/22 

Indicator 
£m 

Actual  
£m 

CFR 682.2 614.1 

Gross Debt (inc PFI & Leases) 619.4 495.6 

% Of Gross Debt to CFR 90.8% 80.7% 

 
This indicator shows that the Council kept an under-borrowed position.  This means that the capital 
borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR)), was not fully funded with loan debt as cash 

supporting the Council’s reserves, balances and cash flow was used. This strategy was prudent as 
investment returns were low and counterparty risk was still an issue that needed to be considered.   

However, as it is forecast that interest rates are to rise from the historic lows, this strategy is to be 

reviewed and an updated approach considered in line with the Improvement Plan and the achievement 
of financial sustainability within a Medium Term Financial Strategy. 

5. Indicator 5: The Operational Boundary 
The Operational Boundary is a measure of the day to day likely borrowing for the Council.  The code 
recognises that circumstances might arise when the boundary might be exceeded temporarily, but if this 
continues for a lengthy period then it ought to be investigated. 

This indicator takes into consideration the capital programme over the life of the MTFS and the ability 
to phase the borrowing over this period.  The indicator supplies flexibility for the Council to take 
advantage of favourable interest rates in advance of the timing of the actual capital expenditure.   

Operational Boundary 
2021/22 2021/22 

Indicator 
£m 

Actual  
£m 

Borrowing 702.2 447.6 

Other Liabilities (PFI & Leases) 48.0 48.0 

Total Operational Boundary 750.2 495.6 

 
6. Indicator 6: The Authorised Limit 

The Authorised Limit is the largest amount the Council may borrow at any point in time in the year.  It is 
set at a level the Council considers is “prudent.”   

78



 

 
 

The indicator takes account of the capital financing requirement estimated at the start of each year, plus 
the expected net borrowing requirement for the year.  This makes allowance for the possibility that the 
best time to do all borrowing may be early in the year.   

The limit also incorporates margins to allow for exceptional short-term movements in the Council’s cash 
flow, bids from service departments to finance efficiencies, changes to the timing of capital payments 
and fluctuations in the realisation of capital receipts.  

Authorised Limit 
2021/22 2021/22 

Indicator 
£m 

Actual  
£m 

Borrowing 780.2 447.6 

Other Liabilities (PFI & Leases) 48.0 48.0 

Total Authorised Limit 828.2 495.6 

It is ultra vires to exceed the Authorised Limit so this should be set to avoid circumstances in which the 
Council would need to borrow more money than this limit.  However, the Council can revise the limit 
during the year.  The actual position is lower than the indicator as the Council does not currently predict 
borrowing in advance of need due to the other cost of holding the funds until needed.  

 
7. Indicator 7: Fixed Interest rate exposure  

This indicator places an upper limit on the total amount of net borrowing which is at fixed rates secured 
against future interest rate movements.  The upper limit allows flexibility in applying a proportion of the 
investment portfolio to finance new capital expenditure.  It also reflects a position where most of the 
borrowing is at fixed rate which provides budget certainty with 100% of borrowing being at fixed rate.  
The upper limit for fixed interest rate exposure was set to allow for flexibility in applying a proportion of 
the investment portfolio to finance new capital expenditure.  It also reflected a position where most of 
the borrowing was at fixed rates to supply budget certainty. 

Upper limit for fixed rate exposure 
2021/22 2021/22 

Indicator 
£m 

Actual 
£m 

Upper Limit 744.4 447.6 

% Of fixed interest rate exposure 100% 100% 

 
8. Indicator 8: Variable interest rate exposure 

This indicator places an upper limit on the total amount of net borrowing (borrowing less investment) 
which is at variable rates subject to interest rate movements.  The intention is to keep the variable rate 
borrowing below 25% of the total gross borrowing (CFR).  The limit is expressed as the value of total 
borrowing less investments. 

 

Upper limit for variable rate exposure 
2021/22 2021/22 

Indicator 
£m 

Actual 
£m 

Upper Limit 186.1 0.0 

% Of variable interest rate exposure 25% 0% 

The indicator is zero due to the borrowing strategy of borrowing only at a fixed interest rate in an 
economic climate of volatile interest rates.  Borrowing at fixed interest rates supplies budget certainty 
for the Council.  

 
 
 

79



 

 
 

9. Indicator 9: Maturity structure of borrowing 
The prudential limits have been set about the maturity structure of the Council’s borrowing and reflected 
the beneficial long-term rates that were expected to be available over the next few years.  The borrowing 
that the Council has taken is £447.6m (shown in the indicator below).  

 
* The borrowing for under 12 months includes 

£17.5m of Lenders Option Borrowers Option 
(LOBO) loans.  Although the loans are due to 
mature in 22-34 years’ time, they are classed as loans repayable within the financial year due to LOBO’s having a call -

in date every six months.   
 

 
10. Indicator 10: Total Investments for periods longer than 364 days 

Authorities can invest for longer than 364 days; this can be helpful if higher rates are available.  However, 
it would be unwise to lend a disproportionate amount of cash for too long a period particularly as the 
Council must keep sufficient working capital for its operational needs.   

This indicator reflects the Council’s current lending policy of keeping investments short term for liquidity 
purposes.  The Council has used its cash balances as an alternative to new borrowing and does not have 
the available cash balances to invest for lengthy periods. 

 
2021/22 2021/22 

Indicator 
£m 

Actual 
£m 

Principal sums invested >364 days 10.0 0.00 

 

Period 
Upper 
Limit 

Indicator 

Actual 
Borrowing 

£m 

Under 12 months* 40% 19% 84.6 

1 – 2 years 40% 4% 18.0 

2 – 5 years 80% 1% 6.0 

5 – 10 years 80% 3% 13.5 

Over 10 years 100% 73% 325.5 

Total Borrowing 447.6 

80



   
 

 
 

Appendix D –Debt and Payment Performance Monitoring 

1.1. The outturn for 

prompt payment of 
invoices based on all 

payments made 
(using invoice date) 

showed that 92.9% 
were paid within 30 

days in 2021/22. This 

is an increase of 6.7% 
compared with in 

2020/21. This 
increase was due (in 

part) to the large 

number of covid 
related payments that were made as a priority. During 2021/22, the Accounts Payable team continued 

to process significant volumes of Covid related support payments covering Test and Trace, Business 
Rates (ARG, restart and OHLG grants), as well as Adult Social Care related payments for care homes 

(infection control, workforce retention, omicron and vaccine/rapid testing related). The performance for 
2021/22 is shown alongside the equivalent performance for 2020/21 in Chart 1. 

 

1.2. During 2021/22 new reports have been developed to highlight the number of payments which are  

outside of the council’s ‘no PO, no pay’ governance policy and to further drive financial compliance. This 
is alongside further system workflow changes/improvements. An automation project is in progress so 

that energy related payments can be made to those in Council Tax bands A-D in May 22 (as per the 

Chancellor’s budget), and discussions have started around how payments to people supporting 
Ukrainian refugees can be urgently processed. The Accounts Payable team continue to work closely with 

all key stakeholders to ensure suppliers are paid quickly. 

 
1.3. In 2021/22 a total of 83,858 payments were made (an increase of 8,550 from 2020/21,) of which 80,861 

were paid within 30 days 

 

1.4. The total value of payments made in 2021/22 was £372.6m (up by £58.7m). Of these: 

 £372.2m (99.9%) was paid out electronically to suppliers via either BACS or CHAPS 

 £0.4m (0.1%) was paid by cheque (292 cheques), 24 more than in 2020/21 

 

2. Sundry Debt Performance 

 
2.1. The total 

outstanding sundry 

debt on 31 March 
2022 was £20.6m, 

which is a reduction 
of £1.2m in 

comparison to the 

previous year 
(£21.8m at 31 

March 2021). As 
part of this total, 

81



   
 

 
 

£7.3m accounted for debt aged over 6 months old and this is set out in Chart 2 alongside the comparative 
figures for 2020/21.  

 

2.2. The £7.3m debt over 6 months old is down by £3.4m from last year. Of this balance, £4.6m (63%) relates 

to debt outstanding from NHS organisations and the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG). It should be 
noted that £1.1m of NHS/CCG payments are unallocated and have not been included within the figure 

quoted due to the poor quality of information on remittances that the CCG submit and ongoing disputes. 
PCC finance/ AR team are working with the CCG to resolve this. 

 

2.3. During 2021/22 a new (overarching) sundry debt policy document has been agreed and published on 

InSite. Alongside this, new “real time” reports for budget managers are continually being developed. 
These will give better visibility over specific debts and the recovery stage that an individual debt is at. 

Additional controls at the billing stage to improve accuracy for invoices and ensure evidence is strong to 

support latter stage recovery action continues. 
 

2.4. In 2021/22 invoices totalling £62.0m were raised, with a total of £63.5m being collected against the total 

outstanding debt (across all years). Serco have been carrying out two projects to recover age d debts, 

and during 2021/22 a total of £29k has been collected. 

 

3. Housing Benefit Overpayments 

 

3.1. Chart 3 shows the total amount of housing benefit overpayments recovered against the cumulative 

target rate set for 2021/22 and the 2020/21 performance. 

 

 
 

 

3.2. Housing benefit overpayment collection as at the 31 March 22 was 28.05%, which is above the target of 

26.0% and 5.66% higher than the figure for March 2021 (22.39%). The amount of debt carried forward 
from 2020/21 was c£5.5m and the amount of newly identif ied debt in 2021/22 was c£1.6m, which 

remains significantly lower than historical levels. As a result, the age profile of the debt continues to get 
older. 

 

3.3. The value of debt collected as a percentage of new debt raised continues to remain above 100% (at 

120% in 2021/22), meaning the amount of overall debt continues to reduce.  

 

3.4. Overall overpayments remain low for a number of reasons, including:  

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Chart 3: Housing Benefit Overpayments Recovered

Target 2021/22 Performance 2021/22 Performance 2020/21

82



   
 

 
 

3.4.1. Universal credit migration continues to reduce the caseload of Housing Benefit claims. The 
reduction in claim numbers ultimately leads to a reduction in identification of new debt, and 

this is of overall benefit to the Council, but this does mean the achievement of the KPI becomes 
increasingly difficult due to the way it is measured. 

3.4.2. Benefits processing remains significantly more up to date than it has been historically, leading 

to fewer overpayments caused by delays in processing. 
3.4.3. Increased data matching of earnings and other changes with DWP and HMRC has led to claims 

being more promptly updated when changes occur. 

 

3.5. While the age profile of the debt is making achievement of the KPI increasingly difficult , the actual 
underlying levels of outstanding debt are continuing to decrease after several years of increases. The 

carried forward debt in to 2022/23 has reduced to c£5m. 
 

4. Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates Collection 

 

 Council Tax 

 

4.1. Chart 4 shows the performance in respect of Council Tax collection over the last 5 years, which outlines 

a very steady trend.  Although the in-year collection rate for 2020/21 reduced by 0.65% in comparison 
to 2019/20, this position is much improved for 2021/22, exceeding the target of 95.8% by 0.12%.  

 

 
 

4.2. Following the delays in recovery in 2020/21 due to the impacts of covid-19, normal recovery resumed in 
2021/22. The service took the opportunity to review recovery processes during this time and as a result 

has streamlined some of the latter stage recovery action. Despite the impacts of covid on the economy, 

collection rates have actually increased from pre-covid levels. 
 

4.3. Prior years (arrears) debt collection also showed significant improvements, with collection of 17.82% 

against a target of 14.31%, with over £3m of arrears collected. 

 

95.89% 95.83% 95.81%
95.16%

95.92%

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

Chart 4 - Council Tax Collection Rates

83



   
 

 
 

 
 

4.4. The previous year saw a steady rise in the working age Local council Tax Support (LCTS) caseload. At the 
start of the pandemic, the increase was sharp in line with the rise in unemployment, lockdown and the 

introduction of furlough. During 2021/22 the caseload started to reduce and is now only just above pre-

pandemic levels. Chart 6 outlines the trend throughout the last three years.   
 

 
 

Non-Domestic Rates 

 

4.5. Chart 7 shows the performance for the collection of Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) over the last 5 years. 
This usually remains steady at around 97.85%, however Covid-19 significantly impacted the collection of 

NNDR income during 2020/21, with the collection rate reducing by 16.06% compared to the level 
achieved in 2019/20 (in monetary terms this equated to £11.5m of uncollected NNDR income). For 

2021/22, collection of NDR income rebounded significantly, exceeding the target of 97.8% by 0.2% with 

an overall collection of 98.0%, achieving the best collection rate in over 10 years.  
 

84



   
 

 
 

 
 

4.6. Non-Domestic Rates recovery action was put on hold during the early part of the pandemic and the 

resulting financial situation many businesses faced. This significantly contributed to the collection rate 
of 81.83% in 2020/21. However, once recovery restarted in February 2021 with soft reminders and 

targeted calls and due to the challenges of debt collection last year, a more robust approach was taken 

to recover the 2020/21 arrears that were owed. This approach has had positive results with 2020/21 
debt reducing by 83%, from £11.5m down to £1.9m, and reducing the number of businesses in debt in 

this period from 1,068 down to 274. 
 

4.7. Business Rates relief for Retail, Hospitality and Leisure continued in 2021/22, with an initial 3-month 
period of 100% relief, following by 9 months of 66% relief. In addition to this, a new relief for those not 

covered by the above Retail scheme was available from February 2022 – called the Covid Additional 

Relief Fund (CARF). 
 

4.8. Temporary staff continued to be employed throughout 2021/22 to help maximise recovery as well as 

additional permanent staff being recruited into the service. Additional staffing resource will continue in 
2022/23 to allow additional ongoing recovery action for the remaining prior year arrears.  

 

5. Covid-19 Grant Administration 

 

Business Rate Relief and Grants 

5.1. Following the award of £90m of grants and reliefs to businesses in 2020/21 further schemes were 
announced in 2021/22 to provide additional support to those continuing to be affected by the impacts 

of covid-19.  

 

5.2. The various grants schemes and reliefs awarded to businesses throughout 2021/22, include: 
5.2.1. Lockdown Grants: A further £2.2m was paid in grants for applications relating to the November 

2020 to March 2021 lockdown period.  
5.2.2. Restart Grant: £7.2m administered from April - July 2021 and awarded under 2 different 

schemes and supporting 927 local businesses.  

5.2.3. Additional Restrictions Grants: this is a continuation of the scheme that started in December 
2020. Prompt allocation of funding in April – June 2021 resulted in the council being awarded 

a further £1.4m of support in July 2021. This was followed by an additional £0.3m in December 
due to the impacts of Omicron. In total, a further £5m in support was provided under this 

scheme in 2021/22, bringing ARG funding to £7.6m. 

5.2.4. Omicron Grant – support for the Hospitality and Leisure sector, resulting in 286 awards 

totalling £1m. 
5.2.5. Extended Rate Relief and Nursery Discount: a further £16.6m of relief was awarded under the 

amended schemes for 2021/22. 

97.81% 97.90% 97.89%

81.83%

98.00%

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

Chart 7:  Business Rates Collection Rates

85



   
 

 
 

5.2.6. Covid Additional Relief Fund (CARF): £0.9m of relief was awarded to those businesses not 
eligible under the Retail Relief and Nursery schemes. 

 

This brings the total level of grants and rate relief to £33m for the year and total covid-19 related funding 

since March 2020 to over £123m. 

 
5.3. The Council is continuing to administer relief schemes in 2022/23. The Retail Relief scheme continues in 

2022/23 at a lower rate of 50% and there remains £4.8m of CARF to distribute to eligible businesses.  

 

Test and Trace Self Isolation payments 

5.4. In addition to business grants and reliefs the team administered the government Test and Trace isolation 
payments. The scheme opened in September 2020 and closed for new isolation cases in February 2022. 

In total 13,391 claims have been made, resulting in 6,845 payments and £3.4m being awarded to 
individuals to assist them to self-isolate. 

 

86



 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 9 

20 JUNE 2022 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Report of: Chair of Audit Committee 

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Councillor Coles, Cabinet Member for Finance 

Contact Officer(s): Dan Kalley, Senior Democratic Services Officer Tel. 296 334 

 

WORK PROGRAMME 2022/23 

 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
 

     It is recommended that the Audit Committee: 
 

1. Notes and agrees the Work Programme for the municipal year 2022/23 and matrix of terms 
of reference 

 

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 

 
1.1 This is a standard report to the Audit Committee which forms part of its agreed work programme. 

This report provides details of the Draft Work Programme for the following municipal year. 
 

2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT  

 
2.1 The Work Programme is based on previous year's agendas. The programme can be refreshed 

throughout the year in consultation with senior officers and the Committee membership to 
ensure that it remains relevant and up to date. In addition, any delays in reporting issues are 
recorded so that they do not drop off the committee agenda. 
 

2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
2.3 

The Work Programme has been updated to reflect a rolling programme of work, this will allow 
the committee to see items in a 12-15 month period coming up. This has now also included a 
reference to the committees' terms of reference and a column to outline any reports that will be 
presented at Cabinet or Council.  
 
 
This has also been adapted in a separate document to show a matrix of the terms of reference 
and the items presented to committee so that the committee can satisfy themselves that they 
have covered a broad range of topics throughout the year. 
 

3. IMPLICATIONS 
 

 Financial Implications 

 
3.1 There are none 

 
 Legal Implications 

 
3.2 There are none 

 
 

87



 Equalities Implications 

 
3.3 There are none 

 
4. APPENDICES 

 
4.1 Appendix A – Rolling Work Programme 2022/23 

Appendix B – Committee matrix – terms of reference 
 

 
  
 
  
 

 
  

88



Meeting date: 20 June 2022 

 

Training/Briefing Dates: 13 June 6pm and 15 June 5pm 

 
Agenda Item Responsible Author(s) Audit Committee Terms of 

Reference 
Brief description Relevant onward 

Committee and 
date (if 
applicable) 

Annual Statement of 
Accounts – Verbal 
update EY 

Ernst & Young (External 
Auditors). 
 
Sian Warren/Kirsty 
Nutton/Cecilie Booth - Finance 
 

2.2.1.19  
 
To review the annual 
statement of accounts, 
specifically, to consider 
whether appropriate 
accounting policies have 
been followed and whether 
there are concerns arising 
from the financial statements 
or from the audit that need to 
be brought to the attention of 
the council. 
 

The Council is required to 
prepare a Statement of 
Accounts each financial year, 
and it must be prepared in 
accordance with statutory 
timelines and accounting 
practices. Since 2010/11 those 
accounting practices have 
been based on International 
Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS) which facilitate the 
production of accounts in a 
standardised and consistent 
format across all industries, 
public and private sectors, 
providing greater transparency 
to all stakeholders. 
 

 

Annual Audit Letter Ernst & Young (External 
Auditors) 
 
Sian Warren/Kirsty 
Nutton/Cecilie Booth - Finance 
 

2.2.1.5  

 
To consider the external 
auditors annual letter, 
relevant reports, and the 
report to those charged with 
governance and 
 
2.2.1.7 

There is a requirement of the 
NAO Code of Audit Practice 
for EY to issue an Annual 
Audit Letter to Those Charged 
with Governance (the Audit 
Committee) following 
conclusion of the audit and 
issue of the audit certificate. 

 

89



 
To comment on the scope 
and depth of external audit 
work and to ensure it gives 
value for money 

2021/22 Outturn 
report 

Cecilie Booth/Emma Riding    

 

 

 

Meeting date: Monday 25 July 2022 

 

Training/Briefing Dates: 18 July 2022 & 20 July 2022 

 

Agenda Item Responsible Author(s) Audit Committee Terms of 

Reference 

Brief description Relevant onward 

Committee and 

date (if 

applicable) 

Audit Committee 
deep dive 
 

TBC TBC An opportunity for the 
Committee to have a deep 
dive into an area of interest to 
the Committee. Further details 
of the nature of the deep dive 
will be updated in the work 
programme. 
 

 

Annual Governance 

Statement 

Steve Crabtree – Chief Internal 

Auditor 

 

Cecilie Booth – Acting 

Corporate Director Resources 

2.2.1.17 

 

To oversee the production of 

the authority’s Annual 

Governance Statement and 

to recommend its adoption 

 

The production of the Annual 

Governance Statement (AGS) 

forms part of the annual 

closure of accounts process. It 

is not a financial exercise, but 

represents a corporate 

overview of the processes and 

 

90



2.2.1.18 

 

To consider the Councils 

arrangements for corporate 

governance and agreeing 

necessary actions to ensure 

compliance with best 

practice. 

 

procedures adopted by 

Peterborough to manage its 

affairs. 

 

Risk Management 
Framework and 
Policies 

Steve Crabtree – Chief Internal 
Auditor (input from EY 

2.2.1.15 

 

To monitor the effective 
development and operation 
of risk management and 
corporate governance in the 
Council. 

Responsibility for the risk 
management framework 

 

Internal Audit: 

Annual Audit 

Opinion 

Steve Crabtree – Chief Internal 

Auditor 

 

2.2.1.1  

 

To consider the annual 

report and opinion of the 

Corporate Director 

Resources and a summary 

of internal audit activity 

(actual and proposed) and 

the level of assurance it can 

give over the council's 

corporate governance 

arrangements.  

 

The purpose of this report 

provides an overall opinion on 

the soundness of the control 

environment in place to 

minimise risk to the Council. It 

is based on the findings of 

completed audits and activities 

undertaken by the Internal 

Audit Team during 2021 / 

2022. 

 

 

Investigations Team 

Annual Report 2021 

/ 2022 

Steve Crabtree – Chief Internal 

Auditor 

2.2.1.16 

 

To monitor council policies 

on “raising concern at work” 

The purpose of this report is to 

present the work carried out 

during the past year to 

minimise the risk of fraud, 

 

91



and the anti-fraud and anti-

corruption strategy and the 

Council’s complaints 

process. 

 

bribery and corruption 

occurring in the Council. 

 

Insurance: Annual 

Report 2021 / 2022 

Steve Crabtree – Chief Internal 

Auditor 

 

2.2.1.15 

 

To monitor the effective 

development and operation 

of risk management and 

corporate governance in the 

Council. 

The purpose of this report is to 

present the work carried out 

during the past year to provide 

an effective insurance function 

which provides cover for all 

aspects of the Council whilst 

minimising the cost. 

 

Budget Monitoring 

Outturn 2021 / 2022 

Cecilie Booth – Acting 

Corporate Director Resources 

 

Emma Riding – Budget 

Planning and Reporting 

Manager 

2.2.1.19 

 

To review the annual 

statement of accounts, 

specifically, to consider 

whether appropriate 

accounting policies have 

been followed and whether 

there are concerns arising 

from the financial statements 

or from the audit that need to 

be brought to the attention of 

the council. 

 

The report provides Audit 

Committee with the outturn 

position for both the revenue 

budget and capital programme 

for 2021/22.  

 

The report contains 

performance information on 

the payment of creditors and 

collection performance for 

debtors, local taxation and 

benefit overpayments. 

 

Audit Results report 
for year ended 31 
March 2022 

Ernst & Young – External 
Auditors 
 
Cecilie Booth – Acting 
Corporate Director Resources 
 

2.2.1.19 

 
To review the annual 
statement of accounts, 
specifically, to consider 
whether appropriate 
accounting policies have 

To review the Audit results 
report from the External 
Auditors. 

 

92



Kirsty Nutton – Deputy S151 
Officer 
 

been followed and whether 
there are concerns arising 
from the financial statements 
or from the audit that need to 
be brought to the attention of 
the council. 
 

Audit Committee 

Effectiveness 

Steve Crabtree – Chief Internal 

Auditor 

 

2.2.1.18 

 

To consider the Councils 

arrangements for corporate 

governance and agreeing 

necessary actions to ensure 

compliance with best 

practice. 

 

To provide Members with an 

update on progress in 

developing the audit plan. 

 

 

Decisions of the 
Shareholder Cabinet 
Committee 

Pippa Turvey – Democratic & 
Constitutional Services 
Manager 
 

2.2.2.12 

 
To consider reports in 
relation to the performance 
of the Council’s companies, 
alongside comments from 
the Shareholder Cabinet 
Committee. 
 

The purpose of this report is to 
ensure that the Audit 
Committee is updated on the 
work of the Shareholder 
Cabinet Committee in relation 
the Council’s companies. 
 

 

 

Meeting date: Monday 12 September 2022 

 

Training/Briefing dates: 6 September 2022 

 

Agenda Item Responsible Author(s) Audit Committee Terms of 

Reference 

Brief description Relevant onward 

Committee and 

date (if 

applicable) 

93



Risk Management: 

Strategic Risks 

Cecilie Booth – Acting 

Corporate Director Resources 

2.2.2.15 

 
To monitor the effective 
development and operation 
of risk management and 
corporate governance in the 
council. 
 

The purpose of this report is 
for the Audit Committee to 
note and comment on the Risk 
Management Report. 
 

 

External Audit plan 
for year ended 31 
March 2022 

Ernst Young – External 
Auditors 
 
Sian Warren/Cecilie 
Booth/Kirsty Nutton - Finance 
 

2.2.2.5  

 
To consider the external 
auditors annual letter, 
relevant reports and the 
report to those charged with 
governance. 
 
2.2.2.7  
 

To comment on the scope 
and depth of external audit 
work and to ensure it gives 
value for money. 
 

The purpose of this report is to 
involve the Audit Committee in 
determining the audit approach 
and to identify any additional 
issues it considers relevant to 
the audit. 
 

 

Budget Setting and 
Scrutiny processes 

Cecilie Booth – Interim 
Corporate Director Resources 

 For the committee to review 
the budget setting process and 
the joint scrutiny of the budget 
arrangements. 

 

 

 

 

Meeting date: Monday 28 November 2022 

 

Training/Briefing dates: 22 November 2022 

 

94



Agenda Item Responsible Author(s) Audit Committee Terms of 

Reference 

Brief description Relevant onward 

Committee and 

date (if 

applicable) 

Audit Committee 
deep dive 
(potentially on write 
offs) 

TBC TBC An opportunity for the 
Committee to have a deep 
dive into an area of interest to 
the Committee. Further details 
of the nature of the deep dive 
will be updated in the work 
programme. 
 

 

Internal Audit: Mid 

Year Progress 

Report 

 

Steve Crabtree – Chief Internal 

Auditor 

2.2.2.1  

 

To consider the annual audit 

report and opinion of the 

Corporate Director of 

Resources and a summary 

of internal audit activity 

(actual and proposed) and 

the level of assurance it can 

give over the council's 

corporate governance 

arrangements. 

 

The purpose of this report 

provides an overall opinion on 

the soundness of the control 

environment in place to 

minimise risk to the council. It 

is based on the findings of the 

completed internal audits from 

the Annual Audit Plan 2022 / 

2023 as at 30 September 

2022. 

 

 

Audit Committee 

start time 2023/24 

Dan Kalley – Senior 

Democratic Services Officer 

Council Standing Order 

section 4.4.1  

 

The timings of normal 

committee meetings will be 

agreed by the committee for 

the next municipal year in 

January of the preceding 

The purpose of this report is to 

allow the Audit Committee to 

discuss and agree the start 

times for meetings from the 

beginning of the Municipal 

Year 2023-24. 

Full Council 

January 2023 

95



municipal year (or as near to 

this time as possible). 

 

Treasury 

Management 

Strategy (Half year 

report) 

Cecilie Booth – Acting 

Corporate Director Resources 

 

Fiona Leverton – Capital 

Accounting & Treasury 

Manager 

2.2.1.18 

 

To consider the Council's 

arrangements for corporate 

governance and agreeing 

necessary actions to ensure 

compliance with best 

practice. 

 

The purpose of this report is to 

report current performance 

and the forecast outturn 

position against the Prudential 

Indicators in the strategy. 

 

 

Decisions of the 

Shareholder Cabinet 

Committee 

Pippa Turvey – Democratic & 

Constitutional Services 

Manager 

 

2.2.2.12 

 
To consider reports in 
relation to the performance 
of the Council’s companies, 
alongside comments from 
the Shareholder Cabinet 
Committee. 
 

The purpose of this report is to 
ensure that the Audit 
Committee is updated on the 
work of the Shareholder 
Cabinet Committee in relation 
the Council’s companies. 
 

 

 

 

Meeting date: 30 January 2023 

 

Training/Briefing dates: 24 January 2023 

 

Agenda Item Responsible Author(s) Audit Committee Terms of 

Reference 

Brief description Relevant onward 

Committee and 

date (if 

applicable) 

Audit Committee 
deep dive 

TBC TBC An opportunity for the 
Committee to have a deep 

 

96



dive into an area of interest to 
the Committee. Further details 
of the nature of the deep dive 
will be updated in the work 
programme. 
 

Internal Audit: 

Approach to Audit 

Planning 

Steve Crabtree – Chief Internal 

Auditor 

 

2.2.2.9  

 

To commission work from 

internal and external audit. 

The purpose of this report is to 

provide Members with details 

of Internal Audit’s annual 

planning approach and 

emerging issues and risks that 

Internal Audit need to provide 

assurance over. It provides an 

opportunity for Members to 

consider these themes and 

provide input into the 

development of the Audit Plan. 

 

 

Treasury 

Management 

Strategy including 

update on risks 

Cecilie Booth – Acting 

Corporate Director Resources 

 

Fiona Leverton – Capital 

Accounting & Treasury 

Manager 

2.2.1.18  

 

To consider the Council's 

arrangements for corporate 

governance and agreeing 

necessary actions to ensure 

compliance with best 

practice. 

 

To provide the Treasury 

Management Strategy 2022/23 

to Audit Committee for 

approval of the policies and 

Prudential Indicators in line 

with the consultation timelines 

for the MTFS. 

 

Part of the 

Medium Term 

Financial Strategy 

presented to Full 

Council in March 

 

Meeting date: 20 March 2023 

 

Training/Briefing dates: 16 March 2023 

 

97



Agenda Item Responsible Author(s) Audit Committee Terms of 

Reference 

Brief description Relevant onward 

Committee and 

date (if 

applicable) 

Audit Committee 

deep dive 

TBC TBC An opportunity for the 

Committee to have a deep 

dive into an area of interest to 

the Committee. Further details 

of the nature of the deep dive 

will be updated in the work 

programme. 

 

 

Draft Annual Audit 
Committee report 

Dan Kalley – Senior 
Democratic Services Officer 
 
Cecilie Booth – Acting 
Corporate Director Resources 
 
Steve Crabtree – Chief Internal 
Auditor 

2.2.2.13  

 
To produce an annual report 
for consideration by Full 
Council. 

The Audit Committee has been 
in operation since Annual 
Council in May 2006 (first 
meeting June 2006). The 
Committee has a wide ranging 
remit that underpins the 
Council's governance 
processes by providing 
independent challenge and 
assurance of the adequacy of 
risk management, internal 
control including internal audit, 
anti-fraud and the financial 
reporting framework. 
 

Full Council July 
2023 

Internal Audit: Draft 
Internal Audit Plan 
2023 / 2024 

Steve Crabtree – Chief Internal 
Auditor 

2.2.1.1  

 
To consider the annual 
report and opinion of the 
Corporate Director 
Resources and a summary 
of internal audit activity 

The purpose of this report is to 
ensure that the Council 
reviews and agrees the audit 
activity for the next audit year. 

 

98



(actual and proposed) and 
the level of assurance it can 
give over the council's 
corporate governance 
arrangements.  
 
2.2.1.3  

 
To consider reports dealing 
with the management and 
performance of the providers 
of internal audit services. 
 
2.2.1.18 

 
To consider the council's 
arrangements for corporate 
governance and agreeing 
necessary actions to ensure 
compliance with best 
practice. 

Risk Management: 
Strategic Risks 

Cecilie Booth – Acting 
Corporate Director Resources 
 

2.2.2.15 
 
To monitor the effective 
development and operation 
of risk management and 
corporate governance in the 
council. 
 

The purpose of this report is 
for the Audit Committee to 
note and comment on the Risk 
Management Report. 
 

 

Decisions of the 

Shareholder Cabinet 

Committee 

Pippa Turvey – Democratic & 

Constitutional Services 

Manager 

 

2.2.2.12 

 
To consider reports in 
relation to the performance 
of the Council’s companies, 
alongside comments from 

The purpose of this report is to 
ensure that the Audit 
Committee is updated on the 
work of the Shareholder 
Cabinet Committee in relation 
the Council’s companies. 

 

99



the Shareholder Cabinet 
Committee. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date for item TBC 

 

Agenda Item Responsible Author(s) Audit Committee Terms of 

Reference 

Brief description Relevant onward 

Committee and 

date (if 

applicable) 

Councils Value for 

Money position 

    

Report on Shared 
Services 

Cecilie Booth – Acting 

Corporate Director Resources 

 
Matt Gladstone – Chief 
Executive 

   

Update on 
Procurement (single 
tender contracts) to 
include an update 
from Head of 
Procurement 

    

100



Actions and results 
from the first 
Independent Panel 

Cecilie Booth – Interim 

Corporate Director Resources 

 
Fiona McMillan – Director Law 
and Governance 

   

Financial Action and 

Improvement Plan 

Cecilie Booth – Interim 

Corporate Director Resources 

 To review along with scrutiny 
committee the financial action 
plan in place. 
 

 

Council’s Reserves 
Policy 

Cecilie Booth – Interim 
Corporate Director Resources 

 Report and update on the 
Council’s reserve position 

 

 

101



T
his page is intentionally left blank

102



Draft planning document linking constitution to delivery in meetings. 

 

Audit Committee 

 

2.2.1 It is advised that Members undertake relevant training within the past three years in order to hold a seat on this committee. 

 

2.2.2 Terms of Reference  

 

2.2.2.1 To consider the annual report and opinion of the Corporate Director Resources and a summary of internal audit activity (actual and 
proposed) and the level of assurance it can give over the Council's corporate governance arrangements. 

2.2.2.2 To consider summaries of specific internal audit reports as requested. 

2.2.2.3 To consider reports dealing with the management and performance of the providers of internal audit services.  

2.2.2.4 To consider a report from internal audit on agreed recommendations not implemented within a reasonable timescale. 

2.2.2.5 To consider the external auditor's annual letter, relevant reports, and the report to those charged with governance.  

2.2.2.6 To consider specific reports as agreed with the external auditor.  

2.2.2.7 To comment on the scope and depth of external audit work and to ensure it gives value for money.  

2.2.2.8 To liaise with the Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) over the appointment of the council's external auditor.  

2.2.2.9 To commission work from internal and external audit.  

2.2.2.10 To have oversight of the Regulation of Investigatory Powers policy and processes. 

2.2.2.11 Authority to approve any changes regarding the Council’s Whistle-Blowing policy and arrangements. 

2.2.2.12 To consider reports in relation to the performance of the Council’s companies, alongside comments from the Shareholder Cabinet 
Committee. 

2.2.2.13  To produce an annual report for consideration by Full Council. 

 

 Regulatory Framework  

 

103



2.2.2.14 To review any issue referred to it by the Chief Executive or a Director, or any Council body. 

2.2.2.15 To monitor the effective development and operation of risk management and corporate governance in the council.  

2.2.2.16 To monitor Council policies on "raising concerns at work" and the anti-fraud and anti-corruption strategy and the Council's complaints 
process. 

2.2.2.17 To oversee the production of the authority's Statement on Internal Control and to recommend its adoption.  

2.2.2.18 To consider the Council's arrangements for corporate governance and agreeing necessary actions to ensure compliance with best 
practice.  

 

 Accounts  

 

2.2.1.19 To review the annual statement of accounts, specifically, to consider whether appropriate accounting policies have been followed and 
whether there are concerns arising from the financial statements or from the audit that need to be brought to the attention of the council.  

2.2.1.20  To consider the external auditors report to those charged with governance on issues arising from the audit of the accounts. 

 

Independent Members of Audit Committee  

 

2.2.1.21  The Audit Committee will include up to 3 independent co-opted non-voting members sitting alongside 7 elected members.  Independent 
members will be appointed by the Council to serve an initial 4 year term, which may be extended with the agreement of Council.  

2.2.1.22  The Committee will be chaired by an Independent Member. In the absence of the appointed chair one of the remaining two Independent 
Members will be appointed as Chair by the Committee.   

2.2.1.23  The Vice-Chair will be an elected member whose purpose will be to support the Chair and in the event of an equality of votes, to 
exercise a second or casting vote.   

  

2.2.1.24  The role of an Independent Member is to support the Council’s Audit Committee in its role to provide independent assurance to the 
members of Peterborough City Council, and its wider citizens and stakeholders.  

2.2.1.25  Independent members will be expected to actively participate in meetings of the Audit Committee and demonstrate independence, 
integrity, objectivity and impartiality in their decision-making. They will support reporting as required to Full Council, including the Annual 
Audit Committee report.   

104



2.2.1.26  Independent members will contribute to the work of the Audit Committee in its role in reviewing the Council’s financial affairs, including 
making reports and recommendations, overseeing internal and external audit arrangements, reviewing and scrutinising financial  
statements, seeking assurances of compliance with the Treasury Management Strategy and practices and reviewing and assessing 
the governance, risk management and control of the authority.  

 

 

Terms of reference Meeting Report title Assurance activity 

2.2.2.1 To consider the annual 
report and opinion of the 
Corporate Director 
Resources and a 
summary of internal audit 
activity (actual and 
proposed) and the level 
of assurance it can give 
over the Council's 
corporate governance 
arrangements. 

 

July 2022 Internal Audit: Annual Audit 
Opinion  

 

 

 

Audit Plan 2021/22 outturn. Provide Audit 
Committee with all works completed 
together with an opinion of the level of 
control / governance in place.  Details of 
resources utilised. Areas of concern and 
non-compliance will be highlighted. 

(Draft) Annual Governance 
Statement  

Details of the governance arrangements 
in place at PCC.  Reporting of the 
assurance framework to establish the 
AGS.  Reporting of areas where 
improvements are required 

Nov 2022 Internal Audit: Mid-Year 

Progress Report 

 

Audit Plan 2022/23.  To provide progress 
against the agreed plan.  Details of any 
changes made to audit risks and 
resources and how this is impacting on 
works.   

Mar 2023 Internal Audit: Draft Internal 
Audit Plan 2023 / 2024 

Provide Audit Committee with detailed 
planned audit coverage for the year. 

2.2.2.2 To consider summaries 
of specific internal audit 
reports as requested 

July 2022 

 

Internal Audit: Annual Audit 
Opinion  

 

Audit Plan 2021/22 outturn. Provide Audit 
Committee with all works completed 
together with an opinion of the level of 
control / governance in place.  Details of 

105



resources utilised. Areas of concern and 
non-compliance will be highlighted. 

 

Nov 2022 

 

 

Internal Audit: Mid-Year 
Progress Report 

 

 

Audit Plan 2022/23.  To provide progress 
against the agreed plan.  Details of any 
changes made to audit risks and 
resources and how this is impacting on 
works. 

 

2.2.2.3 To consider reports 
dealing with the 
management and 
performance of the 
providers of internal audit 
services.  

 

Mar 2023 Internal Audit: Draft Internal 
Audit Plan 2023 / 2024 

Provide Audit Committee with detailed 
planned audit coverage for the year. 

 

2.2.2.4 To consider a report from 
audit on agreed 
recommendations not 
implemented within a 
reasonable timescale 

July 2022 Internal Audit: Annual Audit 
Opinion  

Areas of non-compliance with timescales 
to implement change 

Nov 2022 

 

Internal Audit: Mid-Year 
Progress Report 

 

Areas of non-compliance with timescales 
to implement change 

 

2.2.2.5 To consider the external 
auditor's annual letter, 
relevant reports, and the 
report to those charged 
with governance. 

June 2022 Annual Audit Letter for year 
ended March 2020 

 

Sept 2022 External Audit plan for year 
ended 31 March 2022 

External auditor presents reports 

2.2.2.6 To consider specific 
reports as agreed with 

Jan 2023 Council’s Value for Money 
position 

 

106



the external auditor. Medium Term Financial 
Strategy review and 
recommendations 

 

2.2.2.7 To comment on the 
scope and depth of 
external audit work and to 
ensure it gives value for 
money.  

Sept 2022 External Audit plan for year 
ended 31 March 2022 

 

2.2.2.8 To liaise with the Public 
Sector Audit 
Appointments Ltd 
(PSAA) over the 
appointment of the 
council's external 
auditor. 

As required – 
last done 
November 
2021 

  

2.2.2.9 To commission work 
from internal and 
external audit 

Jan 2023 Internal Audit: Approach to Audit 
Planning 

To set out future audit work based on the 
current issues impacting on PCC 

2.2.2.10 To have oversight of the 
Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers 
policy and processes. 

As required   

2.2.2.11 Authority to approve any 
changes regarding the 
Council’s Whistle-
Blowing policy and 
arrangements. 

As required   

2.2.2.12 To consider reports in 
relation to the 
performance of the 

Sept 2022 Decisions made by the 
Shareholder Cabinet Committee 

 

107



Council’s companies, 
alongside comments 
from the Shareholder 
Cabinet Committee. 

2.2.2.13  To produce an annual 
report for consideration 
by Full Council. 

Mar 2023 Annual Audit Committee report Draft report that currently gets presented 
to Full Council in July. 

 

2.2.2.14 To review any issue 
referred to it by the Chief 
Executive or a Director, 
or any Council body. 

As required   

2.2.2.15  To monitor the effective 
development and 
operation of risk 
management and 
corporate governance in 
the council. 

July 2022 

 

 

Insurance: Annual Report 2021 / 
2022 

Sets out how insurance service has 
operated to ensure effective 
management and control of its assets, 
and provide cover to manage risks 

Sept 2022 Risk Management Strategic 
Risks 

Overview of current strategic risks 

2.2.2.16 To monitor Council 
policies on "raising 
concerns at work" and 
the anti-fraud and anti-
corruption strategy and 
the Council's complaints 
process. 

July 2022 Investigations Team Annual 
Report 2021 / 2022  

Annual report into Investigations Team 
works. 

2.2.2.17 To oversee the 
production of the 
authority's Statement on 
Internal Control and to 

July 2022 (Draft) Annual Governance 
Statement 

Details of the governance arrangements 
in place at PCC.  Reporting of the 
assurance framework to establish the 
AGS.  Reporting of areas where 

108



recommend its adoption.  improvements are required 

 

2.2.2.18 To consider the Council's 
arrangements for 
corporate governance 
and agreeing necessary 
actions to ensure 
compliance with best 
practice.  

July 2022 Review of Effectiveness of Audit 
Committee 

 

Overview of the operation of the 
Committee against the CIPFA standards. 

Annual Governance Statement 

 

Details of the governance arrangements 
in place at PCC.  Reporting of the 
assurance framework to establish the 
AGS.  Reporting of areas where 
improvements are required 

 

Sept 2022 Treasury Management 
Progress Report (including 
risks) 

 

Review of Procurement, 
reporting of single tender 
contracts 

 

Shared services strategy, TMS 
monitoring report 

 

Nov 2022 Treasury Management Strategy 
(Half year report) 

 

109



Jan 2023 Treasury Management Strategy 
including update on risks 

 

Mar 2023 Internal Audit: Draft Internal 
Audit Plan 2023 / 2024 

Provide Audit Committee with detailed 
planned audit coverage for the year. 

 

2.2.1.19 To review the annual 
statement of accounts, 
specifically, to consider 
whether appropriate 
accounting policies have 
been followed and 
whether there are 
concerns arising from the 
financial statements or 
from the audit that need 
to be brought to the 
attention of the council.  

July 2022 Budget Monitoring Outturn 2021 
/ 2022 

 

Audit Results report for year 
ended 31 March 2022 

 

2.2.1.20  To consider the external 
auditors report to those 
charged with governance 
on issues arising from the 
audit of the accounts. 

 

June 2022 

 

Statement of Accounts  

Nov 2022 Statement of Accounts  

 

 

 

 

 

 

110



Independent Audit Committee Members feedback 

 
 

2.2.1.25  Independent members will be 
expected to actively participate 
in meetings of the Audit 
Committee and demonstrate 
independence, integrity, 
objectivity and impartiality in 
their decision-making. They 
will support reporting as 
required to Full Council, 
including the Annual Audit 
Committee report.   

 

2.2.1.26  Independent members will 
contribute to the work of the 
Audit Committee in its role in 
reviewing the Council’s 
financial affairs, including 
making reports and 
recommendations, overseeing 
internal and external audit 
arrangements, reviewing and 
scrutinising financial 
statements, seeking 
assurances of compliance with 
the Treasury Management 
Strategy and practices and 
reviewing and assessing the 
governance, risk management 
and control of the authority.  

 

 
 

111



T
his page is intentionally left blank

112


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting Held on 21 March 2022
	4 Update Ernst & Young - Audit Results Report
	5 Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2022
	Item 5. Appendix A Peterborough City Council Signed Audit Certificate 2019-20
	Item 5. Appendix B Peterborough City Council Annual Audit Letter 2019-20 (1)

	6 Budget Monitoring Report Final Outturn 2021/22
	9 Work Programme
	Item 9. Appendix A Audit Committee rolling work programme June 2022
	Item 9. Appendix B - Audit Committee Planning 22_23


